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Dear Stakeholders 
It is my distinct honor to present the 6th  
annual report of the Central Procurement Board 
of Namibia for the financial year 2022/2023. 
The Board is a critical pillar in our country, 
focusing on providing services to the public to 
ensure the government and its agencies can 
deliver essential services to the populace.

Our priorities are efficiency, transparency, 
accountability, and integrity. Throughout 
the year, we have conducted numerous 
procurement processes vital to national 
development goals. Although the turnaround 
time from bid advertisement to award has 
been unsatisfactory, we have implemented 
measures to improve efficiency. One key 

measure is ensuring the first BEC report is 
presented within 30 days from the bid closure 
date. We have also restructured BEC incentives 
to further remunerate re-evaluations.

A key strategic initiative for improving service 
delivery has been fostering a performance-
driven culture. We have developed and 
implemented a human capital development 
strategy and a performance management 
framework to achieve this goal.

To achieve organizational excellence, we 
rely on deploying human capital, financial 
resources, information technology, and 
stakeholder engagement. We have adopted 
these initiatives to ensure our continued 
success.

During the year, we conducted and 
approved 23 procurement awards, 
resulting in 86 procurement contracts worth  
N$2,367,353,849. Notably, 99% of these 
awards went to wholly Namibian-owned 
entities.

We remain steadfast in our commitment to 
serving the Namibian public and contributing 
to national development goals. We pledge 
to ensure high returns on socio-economic 
investments for the Namibian people.

Sincerely,

______________________________________
Mr. A. Ngavetene

Acting Chairperson, Central Procurement Board of 
Namibia

 We have developed 
and implemented 
a human capital 

development strategy 
and a performance 

management framework 
to achieve this goal.

1. CHAIRPERSON’S REVIEW 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Central Procurement Board of Namibia



REPORT 2022/2023 11

2. A: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

2.1 Overview
The 2022/23 financial year has been a period 
of substantial growth and improvement for 
the Central Procurement Board of Namibia 
(CPBN). Our focus has been on enhancing 
procurement processes, strengthening stake-
holder engagement, and ensuring transpar-
ency and efficiency in public procurement. 
This executive summary provides a concise 
overview of our key operational activities, 
successes, challenges, and strategic initia-
tives during the reporting period.

2.1.1 Key Operational Activities
2.1.1.1 Review and Approval of Individual 
    Procurement Plans (IPPs) and Bidding   
    Documents (BDs):

•	 CPBN reviewed and approved 12 IPPs 
and BDs, a 33% increase from the previ-
ous year, demonstrating our expanded 
role in facilitating strategic procurement 
projects.

2.1.1.2 Procurement Awards:
•	 There was a significant increase in pro-

curement awards through Open Nation-
al Bidding (ONB), with a 150% rise in the 
number of awards and a 258% increase 
in value compared to the previous year, 
reflecting our commitment to competi-
tive procurement methods.

2.1.1.3 Contract Variation Orders and Price   
    Increases:

•	 Improved contract management and 
oversight have led to better control over 
cost increases, despite the number of 
variation orders remaining stable.

2.1.1.4 Monitoring and Evaluation:
•	 The number of active procurement con-

tracts nearly doubled from 49 to 95, 
indicating a 94% growth. The majority 
of these contracts are progressing well, 
with only a small percentage requiring 
remedial actions.

2.1.1.5 Successes
2.1.1.5.1 Enhanced Stakeholder 
Engagement:

•	 Our proactive approach to engaging 
stakeholders has significantly improved 
relationships and cooperation, leading 
to a better understanding of the pro-
curement process.

2.1.1.5.2 Increased Transparency and 		
Accountability:

•	 Regular communication and detailed re-
porting on procurement activities have 
fostered a culture of transparency and 
accountability, building trust in our pro-
cesses.

2.1.1.5.3 Improved Procurement Efficiency:
•	 The notable increase in the number of 

IPPs and BDs reviewed and approved, 
coupled with the rise in competitive 
procurement awards, highlights our im-
proved efficiency in handling procure-
ment processes.

2.1.1.5.4 Socio-Economic Impact:
•	 High-value procurement projects have 

positively impacted socio-economic 
conditions, particularly in job creation 
and service delivery improvement. The 
construction of schools and vocational 
training centers has provided significant 
benefits to local communities.
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2.2 Monitoring and Evaluation 
Findings
2.2.1 Contract Growth:
The number of active contracts significantly 
increased from 49 to 95, a 94% growth be-
tween the 2021/2022 and 2022/2023 report-
ing periods.

2.2.2 Contract Status:
•	 4.2% (4 contracts) have been complet-

ed and are currently in the defect lia-
bility period.

•	 61.1% (58 contracts) are progressing 
well and on track with the execution of 
works.

•	 10.5% (10 contracts) have fallen be-
hind schedule, and remedial actions 
are being implemented.

•	 18.9% (18 contracts) are within the ini-
tial 3-month implementation phase.

•	 Reports for 5.3% (5 contracts) were 
not received during the reporting pe-
riod.

 2.2.3 Contract Termination:
•	 The Board approved the termination 

of one procurement contract due to 
non-performance, as recommended 
by Public Entities.

2.2.4 Challenges and Proposed 
Actions
2.2.4.1 Delayed Payment of Invoices:

•	 Contractors and service providers ex-
pressed frustration with delayed pay-
ments. To address this, responsible 
entities should streamline the invoice 
approval process and ensure timely pay-
ments.

2.2.4.2 Delayed Project Completion:

•	 Delayed payments have led to project 
delays. Close collaboration between re-
sponsible entities and contractors, along 

with regular meetings and follow-ups, 
are necessary to address this issue.

2.2.4.3 Strained Relationships:
•	 Transparent communication and reg-

ular meetings are essential to manage 
expectations and foster better relation-
ships between contractors, service pro-
viders, and government entities.

2.2.4.4 Non-Compliance with Specifications:
•	 Engaging non-compliant service provid-

ers and reinforcing adherence to speci-
fications and labor standards are crucial 
measures to address this challenge.

2.2.5 Strategic Initiatives
2.2.5.1 Process Refinements:

•	 Streamlined invoice approval processes 
to ensure timely payments and mitigate 
project delays.

2.2.5.2 Strengthened Monitoring and 		
Evaluation:

•	 Enhanced mechanisms to track the 
progress of procurement projects more 
effectively, including regular follow-ups 
and remedial actions.

2.2.5.3 Enforcement of Compliance:
•	 Strict measures to ensure compliance 

with specifications and labor standards, 
including engaging non-compliant ser-
vice providers.

2.2.5.4 Educational Initiatives:

•	  Workshops aimed at educating bidders 
and BEC members to improve the qual-
ity of bid submissions and the overall 
evaluation process.
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2.3 Fiduciary  Duties and 
Responsibilities
Effective governance is crucial for any busi-
ness. It comprises the rules, regulations, prac-
tices, and procedures guiding how the board 
of directors manages the institution. The core 
purpose of corporate governance is to ensure 
effective and prudent management that sup-
ports long-term sustainability. 

Our Board places a high value on good cor-
porate governance. It ensures that executives 
manage business operations effectively while 
providing oversight and probity to minimize 
financial risks. The Board oversees the iden-
tification and management of significant risks 
facing the company and reviews annual oper-
ating plans and budgets presented by man-
agement.  

Additionally, the Board’s oversight and a 
strong compliance culture have helped main-
tain a positive reputation with stakeholders. 
During the period under review, the Board 
has issued a revised strategic business plan 
aimed at setting a sustainable long-term val-
ue for the business. This plan underscores the 
Board’s commitment to integrity, accountabil-
ity, and teamwork.

Aligned with the spirit and ethos of Namcode 
and the principles of the King Report on good 

corporate governance, the Board regularly 
conducts timely audits and issues integrated 
reports. To enhance its governance structure, 
the Board has established several commit-
tees:

This governance framework ensures our insti-
tution’s resilience and continued success.

2.4 Public Procurement
Public procurement is the core mandate of 
the Central Procurement Board of Namibia 
(CPBN) as stipulated in Section 8 of the Public 
Procurement Act (PPA) as amended. The prin-
cipal objective is to manage the bidding pro-
cess for public entities, awarding contracts for 
procurement or disposal of assets exceeding 
the prescribed threshold.

2.4.1 Individual Procurement 
Plans (IPP’s)
During the reporting period, the Board ap-
proved twelve (12) Individual Procurement 
Plans (IPPs) totaling N$932,194,833. While 
there was an increase in the number of ap-
proved IPPs, there was a decrease in their 
overall value compared to the previous peri-
od.
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Table 1: Individual Procurement Plans
2020/2021

(N$)
2021/2022

(N$)
2022/2023

(N$)
Individual Procurement Plans 
(IPP)

794,159,456 2,046,643,930 932,194,833

Number of Public Entities 6 8 12

2.4.2  Procurement Awards
The table below outlines the various procurement methods and the total value of awards under 
each method. The systematic increase in the value of procurement through open advertised bid-
ding over the years reflects the Board’s commitment to the objectives of the PPA, which include 
promoting competitive supply, fair dealings, consistency, and legality. It is evident that fewer pro-
curements were conducted through non-competitive methods, and these instances were due to 
compelling reasons or circumstances.

Table 2: Procurement Awards
Procurement Method 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023
Open Advertised Bidding 1,953,805,157 1,024,509,075 2,247,519,963

Restricted Bidding 0 0 30,625,566

Direct Procurement (includes 
Entity to Entity)

1,030,056,782 3,488,259,098 89,208,320

Total 2,983,861,939 4,512,768,173     2,367,353,849 

2.4.3  Variation Orders, Price Increases and Contract Extensions
The table below illustrates the values of contract variation orders, price increases, and contract 
extensions. Public entities typically request variations to a contract when unforeseen conditions, 
such as force majeure, arise. Overall, there has been a noticeable reduction in these variations. 
This reduction indicates improved initial contract planning and management, ensuring that proj-
ects stay within their original scope and budget.

Table 3: Variation Orders, Price Increases and Contract Extensions
Other Awards 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023
Contract Variation Orders 0 0 12,584,496

Price Increases 69, 492, 559 28,053,716 23,062,402

Contract Extensions 889, 069, 108 568,191,170 296,827,755

Total 958,561,667 596,244,886 332,474,653 
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2.5  Stakeholders 
Understanding stakeholder needs is crucial for 
making informed decisions and delivering effi-
cient and effective services. During the report-
ing period, CPBN hosted a one-day stakehold-
er engagement event with accounting officers 
from various Offices, Ministries, and Agencies 
(OMAs). The aim was to strengthen working 
relationships, provide a platform for OMAs to 
voice their concerns, and create a dialogue on 
improving public procurement collaboratively.  

2.6 Outlook 
Public procurement plays a vital role in our 
country. The current legislative framework is 
essential for ensuring public service delivery 
and promoting fair and efficient public insti-
tutions. The Act introduces normative values 
such as openness, transparency, fairness, in-
tegrity, and accountability, which are critical to 
our operations.

The challenges within the procurement leg-
islative framework should be viewed as op-
portunities to improve the system rather than 
criticizing it. The Board remains committed to 
fully implementing this contemporary legisla-
tive framework, defending and enhancing it to 
ensure the best outcomes for public procure-
ment.

Conclusion
The 2022/23 financial year has been marked 
by significant progress for CPBN. Enhanced 
stakeholder engagement, improved transpar-
ency and accountability, and refined procure-
ment processes have yielded positive results. 
The increase in the number and value of pro-
curement awards, along with effective contract 
management, underscores our commitment 
to excellence in public procurement.

Our strategic focus on high-value procure-
ments and their socio-economic impacts 
demonstrates our dedication to Namibia’s de-
velopment. The creation of employment op-
portunities and improved service delivery to 
local communities are testament to the pos-
itive outcomes of our procurement activities.

As we move forward, we remain committed 
to continuous improvement and innovation 
in our procurement processes. By building on 
the successes of the past year and addressing 
the challenges identified, we aim to further 
enhance our efficiency and effectiveness. Our 
ultimate goal is to ensure that public procure-
ment in Namibia is conducted in a manner that 
promotes fairness, transparency, and value for 
money, thereby contributing to the overall 
well-being and development of our nation. 
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STRATEGY
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2. B: STRATEGY 
 
The Central Procurement Board of Namibia (CPBN) was established as a juristic person under the 
Public Procurement Act, 2015 (Act 15 of 2015) as amended, with the following mandate:

a)	 Conduct the bidding process on behalf of public entities for awarding contracts for procurement 
or disposal of assets that exceed the prescribed thresholds;

b) 	Enter into contracts for procurement or disposal of assets on its own behalf or on behalf of 
public entities, as awarded by the Board; and

c)	 Direct and supervise accounting officers in managing the implementation of procurement 
contracts awarded by the Board.

To effectively translate this mandate into tangible results, the Board has formulated the following 
Mission, Vision, and Values:

MISSION
To ethically and efficiently 
manage procurement on 
behalf of public entities.

 

VISION
To be a vibrant and dynamic 
procuring agent that enables 

sustainable growth.
 

VALUES
Core Value Description

Value for Money

We consider cost, quality and 
sustainability in all our actions and 
decisions.

Integrity

We conduct ourselves in a trustworthy 
manner and shall account for our 
decisions and behaviour in line with 
good governance principles. 

Transparency

We ensure that the procurement 
and asset disposal processes are 
open and clear.

Accountability
We shall be answerable for all our 
actions and decisions. 

Responsiveness

We value all stakeholders and shall 
ensure efficient service delivery in 
relation to set standards. 

Teamwork 

We value the unique contribution 
of each team member and shall 
support one another. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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3. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
 

3.1 Board Fees

The Board members receive remuneration in the form of board fees, in accordance with the 
legislative framework governing public enterprises in Namibia. Specifically, the payment of board 
fees is provided for under Section 18(1) of the Public Procurement Act,15 of 2015, as amended, 
read together with Section 18 of the Public Enterprises Governance Act,  1 of 2019.

Table 4: Board Fees
Name Fees Paid (N$) Excluding Tax Salaries
Mr. A. Ngavetene 29,531 1,607,400

Ms. J. !Garus-Oas 559,064 N/A

Ms. H. Herman 550,329 N/A

Mr. E. P. Shilongo 583,912 N/A

Ms. E. Nghiidipaa 552,879 N/A

Mr. O. A. Nangolo 288,270 N/A

Mr. M. Kambulu 615,200 N/A

Ms. M. Shiimi 492,774 N/A

Dr. L. Namoloh 43,298 N/A

TOTAL 2,425,923
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3.2 Risk Management
The Board appointed a consultant to assist with the implementation of its Risk Management 
framework. A risk register was developed, implemented, and managed on a quarterly basis.

CPBN’s risk assessment identified four key categories: Strategy, Operations, Reporting, and 
Compliance.

•	 Strategic Risks: These emerged as the most critical area, highlighting the need for robust 
mitigation plans.

•	 Operational Risks: These require close monitoring and effective mitigation measures.
•	 Reporting Risks: These are moderate and manageable.
•	 Compliance Risks: Our exceptional compliance record signifies a strong commitment to 

regulations.

This structured approach ensures that CPBN remains proactive in managing risks, safeguarding its 
operations, and upholding its responsibilities.

Table 5: Meeting attendance

Name Adjudication Governance ARC HRC TC
Total Meetings 51 4 6 5 4
Mr. A. Ngavetene 50/51 4/4 6/6 5/5 2/4

Ms. J. !Garus-Oas 49/51 4/4 6/6 N/A N/A

Ms. H. Herman 46/51 3/4 6/6 N/A N/A

Mr. E. P. Shilongo 50/51 4/4 N/A 5/5 N/A

Ms. E. Nghiidipaa 49/51 4/4 N/A N/A 4/4

Mr. O. A. Nangolo 47/51 3/4 N/A N/A 2/4

Mr. M. Kambulu 51/51 4/4 6/6 N/A 4/4

Ms. M. Shiimi 45/51 4/4 N/A 1/5 2/4

Dr. L. Namoloh N/A N/A N/A 5/5 N/A
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CPBN BOARD 
MEMBERS
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Independent Member Ms H. Herman

Independent Member Mr O. A. Nangolo

Independent Member
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Independent Member Ms. M. Shiimi

Independent Member

Mr E. P. Shilongo

Independent Member Mr M. Kambulu

Independent Member

1 MARCH 2022 TO 31 MARCH 2023
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4.1 Human Capital

4.1.1 Organisational Structure 
During the period under review, the 
permanent staff complement increased from 
35 to 41 employees. Additionally, five (5) 
temporary employees on short-term contracts 
were offered permanent employment. This 
expansion reflects CPBN’s commitment to 
strengthening its human capital to better 
achieve its mandate.  

Graph 1: Staff Compliment
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2022/2023
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4.1.2  Staff Turnover
Staff turnover refers to the percentage of 
employees leaving the organization over 
a specified period. During the reporting 
period, no staff turnover was recorded. This 
indicates a high level of employee satisfaction 
with the Board’s growth and development 
opportunities, a healthy and conducive work 
environment, and strong relationships and 
engagement among employees. 

4.1.3 Training & Development
During the reporting period, CPBN invested 
N$809,236 in staff development. A total 
of twenty-one (21) employees participated 

in various skills development programs. 
Additionally, six employees at the management 
level successfully completed the Management 
Development Programme Africa through 
the University of Stellenbosch Business 
School Executive Development Programme. 
This program enhances managerial skills 
and business acumen while promoting 
integration across different business units in 
an empowering way.

In addition to the Management Development 
Programme Africa, six (6) employees 
completed the Corporate Award Practitioner 
Programme through collaboration with the 
Chartered Institute for Procurement and 
Supply (CIPS) during the reporting period.  

4.1.4 Organizational Development
During the reporting period, several 
organizational development initiatives were 
undertaken:

4.1.4.1 Job Description Review
The Board engaged HITO HR and Training 
Consultants to conduct a comprehensive review 
of job descriptions across the organization. 
The objective was to assess the functions and 
responsibilities of CPBN’s business units and 
ensure that management and supervisors 
possess the knowledge and competencies 
to develop detailed and results-oriented job 
descriptions. Updated job descriptions will aid 
in evaluating and grading each position. This 
review is expected to be completed in the first 
quarter of the 2023/2024 financial year.  

4.1.4.2  Human Capital Policies Development   
and Review
Policies are vital in shaping workplace culture, 

4. CPBN OPERATIONS 
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operations, and overall effectiveness. During 
the reporting period, the Board engaged 
PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) to develop 
and review twelve (12) Human Capital Policies. 
These policies are expected to be finalized 
and implemented in the 2023/2024 financial 
year.

The primary objective of this initiative is to 
ensure that CPBN’s human capital practices 
meet both current and future employee 
needs and align with the organization’s human 
capital strategy, which emphasizes attracting, 
developing, and retaining talented employees.

Additionally, the updated policies will help 
create an environment where employees feel 
valued, supported, and able to perform at 
their best, as outlined in the organization’s 
Integrated Business Plan. The review process 
for these Human Capital Policies is anticipated 
to be completed by the second quarter of the 
2023/2024 financial year.

4.1.4.3 Performance Management     
Implementation
Performance management is essential for 
CPBN to achieve its goal of becoming a high-
performing organization. It serves as a key 
tool for monitoring, evaluating, and rewarding 
high performers, while also supporting and 
developing those who need improvement. 
This enhances accountability and drives 
the achievement of business outcomes and 
objectives. 

During the reporting period, the Board 
engaged HIKA Consulting, an expert in 

performance and change management, to 
facilitate training for management and staff in 
implementing the performance management 
framework. This initiative includes cascading 
Tier 2 departmental/unit objectives to Tier 3 
individual level objectives.

A key deliverable will be the creation of 
individual scorecards and performance 
agreements for each employee, which will be 
used to measure performance.

The performance management system and 
its inaugural performance cycle are expected 
to be rolled out from the third quarter of the 
2023/2024 financial year. This process will 
include quarterly performance reviews at 
the departmental/unit level and bi-annual 
individual performance reviews.

4.1.4.4 Remuneration Benchmarking and 
Grading 
During the reporting period, the Board initiated 
a procurement process to engage a consultant 
for an institutional benchmarking exercise, 
followed by a grading and remuneration 
benchmarking exercise. The goal was to 
align CPBN’s remuneration practices with the 
Integrated Strategic Business Plan’s objective 
of attracting and retaining the right talent to 
fulfill its mandate.

However, the process did not achieve 
the desired outcome as none of the local 
consultants (PWC, Deloitte, Ernst & Young, and 
KPMG) submitted responsive proposals. The 
search for a suitable consultant is expected to 
be completed in the 2023/2024 financial year.
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4.1.4.5  Employee Wellness    
During the reporting period, CPBN undertook several wellness initiatives in collaboration with 
Namibia Medical Care (NMC), Team Building Namibia, NUST, and the Africa Institute of Leadership 
(ALI) to enhance employee wellbeing:

•	 Corporate Health and Lifestyle Screenings: Screening for lifestyle diseases such as 
hypertension, glucose levels, BMI, and cholesterol.

•	 Team Building Sessions: Focused on improving team dynamics, mental agility, trust, personal 
finances, stress management, values and ethics, and emotional intelligence.

•	 Breakfast Run: Promoted physical wellbeing through regular physical activity.
•	 Employee Appreciation Day: Held on the first Friday of March to recognize and express 

gratitude for employees’ contributions.

The total investment in employee wellbeing programs amounted to N$121,550 during the 
reporting period.



26     CENTRAL PROCUREMENT BOARD OF NAMIBIA

4.2  Internal Procurement  Management Unit
The Internal Procurement Management Unit (PMU) oversees CPBN’s internal procurement 
process for self-consumption. During the reporting period, CPBN awarded one hundred  
and thirty-five (135) bids, totaling N$8,9 million. This amount represents 88% of the approved 
Annual Procurement Plan (APP) budget of N$10,1 million, reflecting a strong execution  
rate.

Table 6: Value of Procurement Awards Per Procurement Method 

Procurement Methods Amount Spent N$
Small Value Procurement 577,452 

Direct Procurement 5,238,794 

Request for Sealed Quotation 2,459,373 

Entity to Entity 15,200 

Request for Proposal 638,303 

 Total 8,929,123 

4.2.1 Comparative Analysis of Awarded Procurements: FY 2021/2022 vs. FY 2022/2023
The number of procurements conducted in the financial year (FY) 2022/2023 increased by 4% 
compared to FY 2021/2022. This trend is illustrated in the table and graph below: 

This comparison highlights a positive growth in procurement activity over the two fiscal years.

Procurement Method 2021/2022 (N$) 2022/2023 (N$)
Small Value Procurement 341,342 577,452

Request for Sealed Quotation 4,183,502 2,459,373

Request for Proposal 198,803 638,303

Execution by Public Entities 26,920 15,200

Direct Procurement 3,808,805 5,238,795

Emergency Procurement -   -

Total 8,559,372 8,929,131

Table 7: Comparative Analysis of Awarded Procurements: FY 2021/2022 vs. FY 2022/2023
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Total value for 2021/2022 Total value for 202/2023

9,000,000.00
8,900,000.00
8,800,000.00
8,700,000.00
8,600,000.00
8,500,000.00
8,400,000.00
8,300,000.00

4.2.2 Cancelled Bids
During the reporting period, six (6) bids were canceled in accordance with Section 54 (1) (a) of the 
procurement regulations.

4.2.3 Achievements 
There has been a notable improvement in the execution rate of the Annual Procurement Plan. The 
execution rate reached 88% for the financial year 2022/2023, up from 45% in the financial year 
2021/2022. This improvement underscores enhanced efficiency and effectiveness in procurement 
activities.

4.3  Financial Management 
4.3.1 Revenue
4.3.1.1 Government Grant
In the financial year 2022/2023, CPBN received a government grant of N$40 million, representing 
a 25% increase from the N$32 million received in the financial year 2021/2022. The government 
grant constituted 94% of total revenue for both 2022/2023 and 2021/2022, reflecting its consistent 
and significant contribution to CPBN’s financial resources.
 

Graph 3: Revenue Graph (in millions)

Government Grant Sale fo tender documents Investments & other income
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40

32

Graph 2: Comparison 2021/2022 & 2022/2023
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Table 8:  Revenue Contribution

Government grant 94% 94%

Sale of tender documents 3% 2%

Investment & other income 3% 4%

100% 100%

4.3.2.2  Sale of Bidding Documents
Revenue from the sale of bidding documents in the year 2022/2023 amounted to N$1,186,702, 
representing a 125% increase from N$527,400 in the previous year. This revenue constituted 3% 
of total revenue in 2022/2023, compared to 2% in 2021/2022. 

4.3.2.3  Investment & Other Income
Investment income for 2022/2023 increased by 2% compared to the previous year. The investment 
income as a percentage of cash balance as of 31 March 2023 was 4%, consistent with the prior 
year. This increase is attributed to higher interest rates, with the average repo rate rising to 7.0% 
in March 2023 from 4.25% in March 2022.

Other income, primarily from VET levy claims, decreased by 26% in 2022/2023 compared to 
2021/2022. Together, investment and other income accounted for 3% of total revenue in 
2022/2023, down from 4% in 2021/2022.

4.3.2 Expenditure

Graph 4: Expenditure (in millions)

Employees Cost Board Fees (Non-Executive Directors Operational Cost

30.00

25.00

20.00
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10.00
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-
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3.55

23.97
26.36

3.00

13.09

8.54

4.3.2.1  Employee Costs
Employee costs increased by 10% in the financial year 2022/2023 compared to 2021/2022. These 
costs accounted for 61% of total expenditures in 2022/2023, down from 68% in the previous year. 
As of 31 March 2023, CPBN employed forty-three (43) staff members, up from forty (40) as of 31 
March 2022.
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4.3.2.2 Board Fees
Board fees increased by 10% in the financial 
year 2022/2023 compared to the previous 
year. They constituted 8% of total operating 
expenditures in 2022/2023, up from 8% in 
2021/2022. 

The increase is attributed to the rise in the 
number of Board meetings, with 70 meetings 
held in 2022/2023 compared to 51 in the 
prior year. This rise in Board fees is due to 
the need for additional meetings to ensure 
compliance with the amendments to the 
Public Procurement Act, specifically Section 
55(4)(a), which allows bidders, other than the 
successful ones, to apply for reconsideration 
of the Board’s decisions. 

4.3.2.3 Operational Costs
General operational costs increased by 53% in 
the financial year 2022/2023 compared to the 
previous year. These costs accounted for 30% 
of total expenditures in 2022/2023, up from 
24% in 2021/2022. Depreciation represents 
the largest portion, comprising 11% of total 
expenditures. This includes depreciation on 
property, plant, equipment, and office leases. 
Other operational costs are allocated as 
follows:

•	 Training and development, software annual 
subscriptions and IT expenses, consulting 
and professional fees, and small assets not 
capitalized each account for 2%.

•	 The remaining costs constitute 1% or less.

4.3.3 Asset Growth
Total assets decreased by 10% to N$42.9 
million in 2022/2023, from N$47.8 million in 
2021/2022. The primary component of total 
assets in both years is Cash & Cash Equivalents. 

4.4 Public Procurement 
Management
4.4.1 Individual Procurement Plans & 
Bidding Documents 
In accordance with Section 8(a), read together 
with Section 9(1)(f) of the amended PPA,  

public entities are required to submit their 
Individual Procurement Plans (IPPs) and 
Bidding Documents (BDs) to CPBN for approval 
and procurement of projects exceeding their 
prescribed thresholds.

Individual Procurement Plans (IPPs): These 
documents represent the business case of the 
public entity and include:
•	 Procurement scope
•	  Procurement method
•	  Cost estimate
•	  Project timelines
•	  Suggested evaluators

Bidding Documents (BDs): These contain 
critical information for bidders, including:
•	 Instructions to bidders
•	 Technical specifications
•	 Scope of service
•	 Terms and conditions of the proposed 

contract
•	 Contract forms
•	 Evaluation criteria

Below is an outline of the IPPs and BDs 
approved by the Board during the reporting 
period. 

During the reporting period, there was a 
notable increase in the number of Individual 
Procurement Plans (IPPs) and Bidding 
Documents (BDs) submitted by public entities, 
rising from eight (8) to twelve (12). This 
represents a 33% increase in the number of 
IPPs.

However, the total value of IPPs decreased 
significantly, from N$2,046,643,930 in 
FY 2021/2022 to N$932,194,833 in FY 
2022/2023, reflecting a 55% decrease. It is 
important to note that the value of Item #12 in 
the table above is included in the N$1.4 billion 
procurement of pharmaceutical products 
reported in FY 2021/2022.
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Table 9 below provides a comparative analysis of the number and value of IPPs for the past three 
financial years:

Table 9: Comparative Analysis of Procurements for the Past Three Financial Years

Item Description  
Financial Year(s) 

2020/21  2021/22  2022/23
Number of IPPs  9 8 12

Value of IPPs (N$)  794,159,457 2,046,643,930 932,194,833

Number of Public 
Entities (PEs)   7 6 8

The table indicates a 33% increase in the number of public entities procuring through CPBN during 
the 2022/2023 financial year. This increase suggests that public entities and central government 
are now dedicating more resources to social and infrastructure development projects, following 
the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the previous two financial years.  

 

2022/2023

2021/2022

2020/2021

Fi
na

nc
ia

l Y
ea

r (
$)

0 84 122 106 14

Number of Public Intities (PEs) Number of IPPs

Graph 5: Number of Approved IPPs and BDs vs Number of Public Entities Over Three 
Financial Year (2020/21-2022/23)
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Graph 6: Analysis of IPPs and BDs (Projects) Received Per Procurement Category

 

The breakdown of procurement projects received by CPBN during the reporting period is as 
follows:

•	 Non-Consultancy Services: 67%
•	 Works: 17%
•	 Goods: 16%

This distribution highlights that the majority of approved procurements were for non-consultancy 
services, with works and goods constituting smaller portions of the total procurement projects.

4.4.2  Procurement Awards
The Board predominantly employs Competitive Procurement Methods, such as Open National 
Bidding (ONB), Open International Bidding (OIB), and Restricted Bidding (RB), unless special or 
compelling circumstances dictate otherwise. These methods are designed to promote competition 
and provide open market offers, as stipulated in the PPA. 

4.4.2.1 Open National Bidding (ONB)
Open National Bidding (ONB) is a procurement method specified in Section 29 of the PPA, 
targeting Namibian citizens or registered entities. Consequently, all awards under this method are 
granted to Namibian nationals. Below is a list of procurement awards based on ONB for the period 
under review. It should be noted that some awards may have originated from previous financial 
years and, in certain cases, may involve multiple contracts due to the lot allocation system. 

Consultancy
0%

Non-
Consultancy

67%

Goods
16%
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Table 11: Restricted Bidding Process (RBP)

Public 
Entity

Procurement 
Title 

Type of 
Procurement Value (N$) Bidder

1

Namibia 
Training 
Authority 
(NTA)

Emergency 
Procurement 
for the 
Completion of 
Works of 
Nkure-nkuru 
Vocational 
Training Centre

Works 30,625,566 Betonstein 
Construction CC

Total Value (RB) 30,625,566

4.4.2.3 Direct Procurements (DP)
Direct Procurement, as defined under section 36 of the PPA, 2015 (as amended), is a procurement 
method employed under specific conditions outlined by the Act. This method is utilized in 
situations where competitive procurement is not feasible due to particular circumstances. 

Table 12: List of Direct Procurements undertaken in 2022/23 Financial Year

Item No. Public Entity Bid Description Value (N$) Successful 
Bidder

Provision in 
the PPA 

1 Roads 
Authority

Request for the 
amendment & 
extension of the 
contract between 
Roads Authority (RA) 
& Nexus Civil (Pty) 
Ltd for the 
Continuation of the 
upgrading of 
DR3546/3547/3575: 
Impalila Island 
access roads to low-
volume seal road 
standards in the 
Zambezi Region 
(25km) 

55,214,848
Nexus 
Civils (Pty) 
Ltd

Section 36

2 Telecom 
Namibia 

Procurement and the 
Maintenance and 
Support Services of 
the Mobile System 
from Whale Cloud 
for 17 months 

33,993,472 Whale 
Cloud

Section 36 (2)
(b)

TOTAL VALUE (N$)                                        89,208,320
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The table above details the number and value of procurements awarded through the Direct 
Procurement method for FY 2022/23. This method is used in scenarios where the usual competitive 
methods are not applicable, ensuring procurement is still conducted in a transparent and justifiable 
manner under the prescribed conditions of the PPA.

4.4.3 Comparative Analysis of Procurement Awards for the Past Three Financial Years 

4.4.3.1 Breakdown of Procurement Awards by Procurement Method:
This section presents a detailed breakdown of procurement awards by method, both in terms of 
number and value, over the past three financial years: 2020/2021, 2021/2022, and 2022/2023. 
The analysis includes tables and graphs illustrating the distribution of awards across different 
procurement methods.

Table 13: Breakdown of Procurement Awards by Procurement Method:

Procurement 
Methods 

FINANCIAL YEARS 

2020/21  2021/22  2022/23

Count  Value (N$)  Count  Value (N$)  Count Value (N$)

Open National 
Bidding (ONB)  12  1,324,004,013 8  627,972,328 20 2,243,313,424

Restricted Bidding 
(RB)  0  0  0  0  1 30,625,566

Open International 
Bidding (OIB)  1  629,801,144 2  396,536,747 0 0

Direct 
Procurements (DP)  10  1,030,056,782 7  3,488,259,098 2 89,208,320

Graph 7: Count of Procurement Awards by Procurement Methods over Three Financial 
Years (2020/2021-2022/2023)
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Graphs depicting the number and value of procurement awards across different methods for each 
financial year will be provided below.

This comparative analysis offers insights into trends and shifts in procurement practices over the 
specified periods.

4.4.3.2 Analysis of Procurement Awards Trends
Based on table 13 and graph 7 above:

•	 Open National Bidding (ONB): There was a significant increase in both the number (150%) 
and value (258%) of awards under the ONB method when comparing FY 2021/2022 to FY 
2022/2023. This indicates a substantial rise in the use of ONB for procurement, reflecting a 
heightened focus on competitive and transparent processes.

•	 Open International Bidding (OIB) and Direct Procurement (DP): In contrast, both OIB 
and DP methods showed a decreasing trend over the three financial years. This decline 
suggests a reduction in the use of these methods, possibly due to shifts in procurement 
strategy or changes in procurement needs and priorities.

This analysis highlights a notable shift towards more competitive procurement practices, particularly 
through ONB, while other methods like OIB and DP have seen reduced utilization.

Graph 8: Comparison of Value of Competitive Bids Over Three Financial Years (2020/21-2022/23

Opening National
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4.4.3.3 Procurement Awards by Category for FY 2022/23

This section provides a breakdown of procurement awards for the 2022/23 financial year by 
procurement category. It highlights the most frequently sourced types of procurement categories 
during this period. 

Table14: Procurement Awards by Category for FY 2022/23

Procurement Category
FY: 2022/23

Count Contract Ext Value
Goods 0 0

Works 14 2,172,846,475

Consultancy   0

Non-Consultancy Services 9 190,300,834

Totals 23 2,363,147,309

The table 14 above represent the distribution of procurement awards across different categories 
for FY 2022/23.

The breakdown reveals the predominant procurement categories for the year. The most frequently 
sourced type of procurement category can be identified from the highest number of awards and 
value. This insight is essential for understanding procurement priorities and trends for the year.

The data reveals that:

•	 The works catergory was the most frequently awarded category with 14 procurements 
amounting to N$2,172,846,476.

•	 Non-Consultancy Services followed with 9 procurements amounting to N$190,300,834.

This distribution indicates a strong focus on works-related procurements, reflecting substantial 
investment in infrastructure and construction projects during the fiscal year.

4.4.4 Contract Variation Orders and Price Increases 
Variation Orders (VOs) are adjustments made to existing contracts due to changes in scope, price 
escalations, value engineering, or time extensions that impact project costs. These adjustments 
are governed by sections 56 and 62 of the PPA and the relevant contract clauses.

Key Points:
•	 Purpose of Variation Orders: To accommodate changes that affect the original contract terms, 

including scope modifications, cost increases, or time extensions.
•	 Authorization Process: Public entities must inform the Board and seek authorization before 

varying any contract signed by the Board.
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Table 15: Summary of Contract Variation Orders and Price Increases

Item No. Public Entity Bid Description Service Provider(s) Value (N$)

1

Ministry of 
Education, Arts 
and Culture 
(MoEAC)

Request for Contract Price 
Increase for the Construction 
of a Primary School at 
Otuzemba in Opuwo in the 
Kunene Region

Adaptive Building 
Construction 6,761,144

2
Ministry of 
Works & 
Transport

Request for a Variation order 
for the Mechanical & 
Electrical Sub-contractors 
cost for the Northern 
Railway Extension Phase 3 
between Ondangwa 
&Oshakati: Construction of 
Station building, platforms & 
civil works

Tatiana Trading 
Enterprises CC JV 
Ongushe Trading

5,823,352

3

Ministry of 
Gender 
Equality, 
Poverty 
Eradication and 
Social Services 

Request for Price adjustment 
and statutory price increase 
on Tender M33-2/2016: 
Rendering of Services to 
Effect Cash Payment of the 
Basic Grants & Allowances 
to Beneficiaries to 
MoGEPESW 

Epupa Investments 
Technology (Pty) Ltd 2,180,418

4
Ministry of 
Health and 
Social Services 

Request for Annual Price 
Increase of 6.6% for the 
Contract for Rendering of 
Catering services to the 
Ministry of Health and Social 
Services from 1st June 2022 
to 31st May 2023

Pamo Trading 
Enterprises; 
Nutrifood; 
Independence 
Caterers; Seal 
Caterers; Tulipamwe 
Catering Services; 
OKG Food 
Services;Kunene 
Catering Services; 
Clouds; Trading 
Enterprises

8,225,869

5
Ministry of 
Works and 
Transport

Request for approval of 
outstanding payment of 
service fee adjustment of a 
price increase to Jo-Vat 
Investment CC- Provision of 
Security Services to the 
Garage in Windhoek from 
01 January 2017 to 
September 2017

Jo-Vat Investment 
CC 71,619

TOTAL VALUE (N$) 23,062,402
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Variation Orders ensure that changes in contract terms are managed transparently and in 
accordance with the PPA. This process maintains contractual integrity and adherence to legal 
requirements, allowing for necessary adjustments while safeguarding the interests of all parties 
involved.

Table16: Tabulation of the Number and Values of Variation Orders and Price Increases over 
three (3) Financial Years 2020/21 to 2022/23

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Counts 2 4 5

Values   69,492,559   28,053,716   23,062,402

Graph 9: Comparison of the value of Variation Orders/Price Increase Over the three 
Financial Years (2020/21-2022/23)
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4.4.4.1 Comparative Analysis of Variation Orders and Price Increases
The analysis of Variation Orders (VOs) and price increases over three financial years reveals the 
following trends:

1.	 Value Trends: There has been a noticeable decrease in the values of Variation Orders and 
price increases over the three fiscal years. This suggests effective cost management and 
control during contract implementation.

2.	 Count Trends: While the total values have decreased, the number of Variation Orders and 
price increases has remained relatively stable. This indicates that while the frequency of 
changes remains consistent, their financial impact has been reduced.

•	 Decreasing Values: The reduction in the monetary value of Variation Orders and price increases 
reflects improved management of contract costs and better control over project budgets.

•	 Stable Counts: The consistent number of Variation Orders and price increases indicates that 
changes and adjustments are still necessary but are being managed more cost-effectively.

Overall, these trends suggest that the Board has successfully implemented strategies to control 
and manage costs effectively during contract execution.

 
4.4.5 Contract Extensions
Contract extensions may be necessary during the implementation phase due to various 
circumstances, as outlined in section 62 of the PPA. However, the Board generally discourages 
frequent contract extensions due to their potential to undermine competition, create monopolistic 
conditions, and foster complacency among current service providers.
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Graph 10: Number of Variation Orders/Price Increase Over three Financial Years (2020/21-
2022/23)
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Permissible Circumstances for Extensions:
•	 Need for Further Research: When additional time is required for thorough research and 

benchmarking.

•	  Ongoing Evaluation: If the evaluation or bidding process is still in progress and further time 
is needed to complete it.

Table17: Comparative Analysis of Approved Contract Extensions for FY 2022/23

 

 

FINANCIAL YEARS

2020/21  2021/22 2022/23

Number of Contract Extensions 19 17 5

Nationality of Beneficiaries 25 35 6

Namibian Entities Foreign Entities 1 1 0

Value (N$) 889,069,107.00 568,191,170 296,827,755

While the Board aims to minimize contract extensions to promote competitive practices and avoid 
entrenching existing service providers, it does recognize the need for extensions in specific cases. 
The list of approved contract extensions for the period under review is provided above, reflecting 
instances where extending the contract was deemed necessary and justified.

Graph 11: Comparison of Number of Approved Contract Extensions over Three Years 
(2020/21-2022/23)
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4.4.5.1 Analysis of Contract Extensions
The data presented in the table and graphs indicate a positive trend in contract management over 
the past three financial years:

	 1.	 Decreased Number and Value: Both the number and value of contract extensions have 
decreased significantly, with a 48% reduction in the number of extensions during the 
2022/23 financial year.

	 2.	 Improved Procurement Management: This decrease reflects improvements in 
procurement planning and execution. The Board’s enhanced processes have contributed 
to more timely and effective procurement, reducing the need for contract extensions.

	 •	 Trend Analysis: The reduction in both the number and value of contract extensions 
signifies a more efficient and proactive approach to procurement.

	 •	 Improved Practices: The decrease demonstrates the Board’s success in refining 
procurement strategies and planning, leading to better management and fewer extensions.

Overall, these trends highlight the effectiveness of the Board’s procurement management 
improvements, resulting in better planning and more efficient contract execution.

 
4.4.6 Cancelled Bids
The primary objective of any procurement process is to successfully award contracts to ensure the 
provision of goods and services to beneficiaries. However, while cancellations are not the ideal 
outcome, they are sometimes necessary. According to the ITBs and Section 54 of the PPA, 
cancellations can occur under specific circumstances.

Graph 12: Comparison of Value of Approved Contract Extensions Over the three 
Financial Years (2020/21-2022/23)
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Key Points:

•	 Cancellation Circumstances: Bids may be canceled before acceptance by the Board or 
public entity. Such cancellations are governed by procurement regulations and are necessary 
under certain conditions.

•	 Procurement Integrity: Despite the best efforts, cancellations can be a part of the 
procurement process, ensuring compliance with regulations and maintaining the integrity of 
the procurement system.

Procurement cancellations, while not desirable, are a recognized part of the procurement 
process and are managed according to established guidelines to maintain the integrity and 
effectiveness of procurement practices.

Table18: List of bids cancelled during 2022/23 Financial Year

Item No. Public 
Entity Bid Description

IPP Cost 
Estimate 
(N$)

Reason for Cancellation

1

Namibia 
Training 
Authority 
(NTA)

Procurement of 
the Provision of 
Security 
Services NTA

12,813,300

An irregularity that warrants the 
cancellation of the bidding process 
occurred and does not create or 
achieve the expected outcome in 
terms of Section 54 (1)(e) and (g) of 
the PPA, as amended. 

2 Telecom 
Namibia

Provision of 
Security 
Services to 
Telecom 
Namibia

64,137,640

The Review Panel ordered that the 
procurement proceedings be 
terminated and started afresh in 
terms of Section 60 (f) of the PPA., 
as amended. 

3
City of 
Windhoek 
(CoW)

Provision of 
Security 
Services to City 
of Windhoek

36,184,380
It does not create or achieve the 
expected outcome Section 54 (1)
(g) of the PPA, as amended. 

4

Ministry of 
Health and 
Social 
Services 
(MoHSS)

Procurement of 
Supply and 
Delivery of 
Clinical 
Products 

400,000,000

The lowest evaluated bid is 
substantially above the applicable 
cost estimate in terms of Section 
54 (1)(b) of the PPA, as amended.

5

Namibia 
Civil 
Aviation 
Authority 
(NCAA)

Procurement of 
Billing Services 
for the 
Regulator and 
the Air 
Navigation 
Service Provider 
for a period of 
Eight (8) Years

24,000,000

It is not economically viable to 
proceed with the bid and it does 
not create or achieve the expected 
outcome in terms of Section 54 (1)
(f) & (g) of the PPA, as amended.

TOTAL VALUE (N$)  537,135,320
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Table19: Comparative Analysis of Bid Cancellation over three (3) FYs. 

 
Financial Year

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Number of Bids Cancelled 6 5 5

Value (N$) 1,458,225,849 3,949,207,858 537,135,320
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Graph 13: Comparison of Value of Bids Cancelled Over three Financial Years (2020/21-
2022/23)

Graph 14: Number of Bids Cancelled Over three Financial Years (2020/21-2022/23)
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Over the past three financial years, the number of cancelled bids has remained relatively constant. 
However, the value of these cancellations varies year to year, influenced by the cost estimates of 
the canceled procurements.

Key Points:
	 •	Cancellation Trends: The frequency of bid cancellations has been stable across the three 	

	 years. Variations in value are due to the differing costs of the canceled procurements.
	 •	Reasons for Cancellation: Bids may be cancelled due to:

	 	 Failure of the Procurement Process: This includes instances where no responsive 
bids are received or irregularities affect the process.

	 	 Review Panel Orders: Cancellations can also occur based on orders from the 
Review Panel as stipulated in Section 60(f) of the PPA.

While the number of cancelled bids has been consistent, the associated values fluctuate depending 
on the circumstances of each cancellation. Key reasons include procurement process failures and 
orders from the Review Panel, reflecting the complexity and oversight inherent in maintaining a 
robust procurement system.
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4.5.2   High Court Matters
The PPA, in Section 59(4), allows bidders to challenge decisions made by the Central Procurement 
Board of Namibia (CPBN) or public entities in the High Court. However, it is required that bidders 
exhaust all internal remedies before pursuing legal action. During the period under review, four 
procurement matters were escalated to the High Court of Namibia. 
 
The escalation of matters to the High Court underscores the importance of maintaining rigorous 
internal processes and providing avenues for redress within the procurement framework. The 
CPBN remains committed to upholding legal and procedural standards in its procurement 
activities.
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4.5.3 Debarment Applications  
Under Section 68(1) of the Public Procurement Act, the Review Panel has the authority to suspend 
or debar a bidder or supplier from participating in procurement proceedings based on specified 
grounds, including misconduct, collusion, and failure to fulfill contractual obligations. During the 
period under review, CPBN initiated a debarment application for one bidder, detailed as follows: 
The debarment process is a crucial measure to ensure integrity and compliance within the 
procurement system. It serves as a deterrent against unethical practices and reinforces the 
commitment to maintaining high standards in procurement activities.

Table 22: Debarment Application
Bid Applicant Respondent Public 

Entity
Relief Sought Review Panel 

Order	

1 Construction of 
Nkurenkuru 
Vocational 
Training Centre 
(W/ONB/
CPBN-08/2019)

CPBN Neu-Olulya 
Trading 
Enterprise 
CC

Namibia 
Training 
Authority 

The CPBN 
applied for the 
debarment of 
the Neu-Olulya 
Trading 
Enterprise CC 
for misconduct 
relating to the 
execution of 
the 
procurement 
contract in 
terms of 
section 68(1)(d).

That on the 
strength of Section 
68(1)(d) of the Act, 
the Respondent is 
suspended and 
debarred from 
participating in 
procurement 
activities with all 
public entities, 
effective from 2nd 
August 2022 to 2nd 
February 2023.

4.6 Monitoring and Evaluation 
In accordance with Section 8(c) of the Public Procurement Act, the Board is responsible for directing 
and supervising accounting officers in the management and implementation of procurement 
contracts awarded by the Board. This section provides an update on the progress of procurement 
awards as of 31 March 2023.

4.6.1 Progress with the Awards Implementations as of 31 March 2023
During the reporting period, CPBN managed a total of ninety-five (95) active procurement 
contracts, categorized as follows:
	 •	 Works: 38 contracts
	 •	 Goods: 12 contracts
	 •	 Consultancy Services: 1 contract
	 •	 Non-Consultancy Services: 44 contracts
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The chart below illustrates the distribution of active procurement projects for the financial years 
2021/2022 and 2022/2023.

The provided data offers a snapshot of CPBN’s ongoing procurement activities and underscores 
the Board’s efforts to effectively manage and supervise the implementation of contracts.

 

The number of active contracts has risen significantly, from 49 to 95, marking a remarkable 94% 
growth between the 2021/2022 and 2022/2023 reporting periods. Analyzing the M&E reports 
reveals the following:
	 •	 Completed Contracts: 4.2% (4 contracts) have been completed and are currently in the 

defect liability period.
	 •	 On-Track Contracts: 61.1% (58 contracts) are progressing well and remain on schedule.
	 •	 Delayed Contracts: 10.5% (10 contracts) have fallen behind schedule; remedial actions 

are being implemented to address these delays.
	 •	 Initial Implementation Phase: 18.9% (18 contracts) are within the initial 3-month 

implementation phase.
	 •	 Unreported Contracts: Reports for 5.3% (5 contracts) were not received during the 

reporting period.

Notably, during the review period, the Board approved the termination of one procurement 
contract due to non-performance, based on the recommendation of the Public Entities and in 
accordance with the contract terms.

4.6.2 Values of Active Procurement Contracts by region on 31 March 2023
Additionally, during the review period, the Board approved the termination of one procurement 
contract due to non-performance, in line with the contract terms and the public entity’s 
recommendation.

2021/22 Values 2022/23 Value

Goods Works

38

18

44

22

129

Services

Graph 14: Procurement Projects under Implementation per Financial Years  
(2020/21-2022/23)
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4.6.3  The Impact of Procurement Projects 
The CPBN focuses on managing high-value 
procurement projects that have significant 
socio-economic impacts on the communities 
where they are implemented. These impacts 
are evident in various aspects:

1.	 Improved Service Delivery:
•	 Education: The construction of schools in 

remote villages has greatly improved 
access to education for children in those 
areas. This development ensures that 
education services are available to 
communities that previously lacked such 
facilities.

2.	 Employment Opportunities:
•	 Local Employment: Procurement projects 

have generated substantial employment 
opportunities, contributing to job creation 
both locally and from other parts of the 
country. During the reporting period, a 
total of 3,776 employment opportunities 
were created through construction 
projects, as well as cleaning and security 
services across different regions.

•	 Local Hiring: One of the key criteria in bid 

submissions and evaluations is the 
requirement for bidders to source 
unskilled labor from the local areas where 
the project is being carried out. This 
practice supports local economies and 
ensures that the benefits of the projects 
are distributed within the community.

3.	 Vocational Training Centers:
•	 Skills Development: The construction and 

upgrading of vocational training centers 
have enhanced access to vocational 
education. These centers enable youth to 
acquire valuable skills for employment or 
entrepreneurship, which is crucial for their 
personal and professional development.

	 4. Economic Impact:
	 •	Local Economy: The funds injected into 

local economies through salaries and 
local procurement of building materials 
contribute to the overall economic 
development of the region. Many projects 
have an implementation period ranging 
from 18 to 36 months, extending the 
economic benefits beyond the immediate 
project duration.

Table 23: Values of Active Procurement Projects by Regional and National Level.  
Region of Operation  SUM of Project Value (N$)

 Erongo               618,456,938 

 Hardap                 92,847,591 

 Karas               190,524,763 

 Kavango East                 56,188,138 

 Kavango West                 59,810,181 

 Khomas               834,795,624 

 Kunene               121,074,050 

 Ohangwena               113,983,770 

 Omaheke                 13,496,969 

 Omusati               233,954,072 

 Oshana               534,712,469 

 Oshikoto                 40,563,278 

 Otjozondjupa           1,007,137,609 

 Zambezi                 90,929,980 

 National           1,212,684,402 

 Grand Total          5,221,159,834
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5.	 Community Participation:
•	 Food Supply Chain: The procurement for 

the provision of maize meal, blending, 
packaging, and transportation to regional 
distributors for the Ministry of Education, 
Arts and Culture engages local 
communities, including farmers and food 
producers. This fosters community 
participation and stimulates local 
economic development.

•	 Challenges: Despite these benefits, there 
is a challenge in the local supply chain for 
blending maize meal. Protein supplies 
needed for blending are still sourced from 
South Africa, which limits opportunities 
for local farmers and affects potential 
local economic gains.

The procurement of feeding program supplies 
for primary school learners in Namibia 
demonstrates profound social impacts:

i.	Improved Nutrition:
•	 Health Benefits: By providing essential 

food supplies, the program significantly 
enhances the nutrition and overall health 
of primary school learners. This is crucial 
for their growth, development, and ability 
to concentrate in school.

	
ii.	 Support for Education:
•	 Increased School Attendance: Adequate 

nutrition directly contributes to higher 
school attendance rates. When students 

are well-nourished, they are more likely to 
attend school regularly and perform 
better academically.

	
iii.	 Promotion of Social Equity:
•	 Equal Opportunities: The feeding pro-

gram helps address disparities in access 
to nutritious food, promoting social equi-
ty among students from different so-
cio-economic backgrounds.

iv.	 Community Engagement:
•	 Local Involvement: The program fosters 

community involvement by engaging 
local suppliers and service providers, 
thereby stimulating local economic 
development and reinforcing community 
ties.

	
v.	 Overall Health Improvement:
•	 National Health Profile: By improving the 

health of school-aged children, the 
program contributes to the country’s 
overall health profile, potentially leading 
to long-term benefits for public health.

4.6.4  Performance Monitoring
Table 1 below provides a detailed report of 
contract progress for the period from 01 April 
2022 to 31 March 2023. This table includes 
specific updates on the implementation status 
of various procurement contracts. 
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4.6.5  Challenges experienced during 
award implementation and proposed Ac-
tions
1. Delayed Payment of Invoices
•		 Challenge: Contractors and service pro-

viders have reported delays in the pay-
ment of their invoices, impacting their 
cash flow and financial stability.

•		 Proposed Actions:
	 Streamline Invoice Approval: Ministry of 

Education, Art, and Culture and the De-
partment of Works (Ministry of Works 
and Transport) should improve the effi-
ciency of the invoice approval process 
to ensure timely payments.

	 Establish Communication Channels: Set 
up effective communication channels to 
provide regular updates to contractors 
about the status of their invoices.

2. Delayed Project Completion
•		 Challenge: Delayed payments can result 

in extended project timelines, affecting 
the timely completion of construction 
projects.

•		 Proposed Actions:
	 Enhanced Collaboration: Responsible 

entities (Ministry of Works and Trans-
port and Ministry of Education, Art, 
and Culture) should work closely with 
contractors, clarifying their roles and 
responsibilities.

	 Regular Monitoring: Conduct regular 
meetings and follow-ups to monitor 
the status of invoices and ensure 
prompt payments.

3. Strained Relationships
•		 Challenge: Frustrations from payment de-

lays can damage relationships between 
contractors, service providers, and gov-
ernment entities.

•		 Proposed Actions:
	 Transparency in Communication: Pro-

vide clear and regular updates on in-
voice status and any potential delays.

	 Foster Engagement: Hold regular meet-
ings to address concerns, manage ex-
pectations, and improve relationships.

4. Non-Compliance with Specifications
•		 Challenge: Some service providers, espe-

cially in cleaning services, do not adhere 
to the specifications outlined in standard 
bidding documents.

•		 Proposed Actions:
Engage Non-Compliant Providers: 

CPBN should engage with non-com-
pliant service providers to address and 
rectify violations of contract clauses.

5. Non-Adherence to Minimum Wages
•		 Challenge: Certain contractors and ser-

vice providers are found to underpay their 
workers, violating agreed-upon labour 
standards.

•		 Proposed Actions:
	 Enforce Labour Standards: Implement 

strict measures to ensure adherence to 
minimum wage standards.

	 Collaborate and Rectify: CPBN should 
collaborate with clients to engage 
non-compliant contractors and re-em-
phasize the importance of adhering to 
labour standards.

4.7 Stakeholders Engagement  
Engaging with stakeholders is crucial for 
aligning organizational goals with their expec-
tations and addressing their concerns. During 
the reporting period, CPBN focused on en-
hancing stakeholder engagement through 
various initiatives.

4.7.1 Bid Evaluation Committee Workshop
The Bid Evaluation Committee (BEC) plays a 
critical role in the procurement process, re-
sponsible for evaluating bids and ensuring 
successful project completion. To strengthen 
this role, CPBN organized a workshop for cur-
rent and prospective BEC members:
•		 Date and Location: 29 April 2022, Wind-

hoek Country Club.
•		 Attendance: Over fifty participants.
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Objectives of the Workshop:
1.	 Enhance Understanding and Capacity:
• 	 Improve the knowledge and skills of BEC 

members as key stakeholders in the pro-
curement cycle.

2.	Identify Challenges and Areas for Im-
provement:
•	  Engage with BEC members to identify 

challenges and suggest improvements in 
the bid evaluation process and bidding 
documents from their perspective.

3.	 Share Best Practices:
• 	 Expose BEC members to best practices, 

ethical principles, and methodological 
processes for evaluating and examining 
bids at CPBN.

4.	 Document Lessons and Experiences:
•	 Collect CPBN’s lessons and experiences 

to refine processes, improve timelines, 
and enhance facilities for future evalua-
tions.

5.	 Ensure Compliance:
	 • Promote compliance with legal time-

lines as specified in Regulation 7(2) & (3) 
of the Public Procurement Act.

This summary effectively communicates the 
workshop’s purpose and outcomes, empha-
sizing the importance of BEC members in the 
procurement process and CPBN’s commit-
ment to improving procurement practices.

4.7.2 CPBN Stakeholders Engagement 
with Executive Directors

The Central Procurement Board of Namibia 
(CPBN) hosted the CPBN Stakeholders 
Engagement Forum under the theme 
“Improving Public Procurement Through 
Partnership” on 25th October 2022 at the 
Windhoek Country Club. Attended by 
Executive Directors and senior officials from 
various government Offices, Ministries, and 
Agencies (OMAs), the engagement aimed to 
achieve several key objectives:
•		 Clarification of Roles and 

Responsibilities: The forum sought to 

increase understanding and clarify roles, 
emphasizing that Public Entities (PEs) are 
responsible for building business cases 
for their procurements, and that CPBN 
should not be perceived merely as a 
standards authority. This distinction is 
crucial for ensuring that PEs take 
ownership of their procurement processes.

•		 Breaking Institutional Barriers: The 
event aimed at breaking down institutional 
barriers and fostering normalization of 
relationships between CPBN and PEs. By 
building these relationships, the forum 
aimed to create synergies that would 
ultimately improve service delivery to the 
Namibian citizenry.
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4.7.3 Bidders Education Workshop 
The Bidders Education Workshop held in On-
gwediva on 30th August 2022 achieved its ob-
jectives effectively:

1.	 Sharing Knowledge and Experiences: 
The workshop provided an opportunity to 
share insights and lessons learned regard-
ing common challenges faced by bidders 
in the competitive bidding process. This 
exchange of knowledge aimed to help 
bidders better navigate the procurement 
landscape.

2.	 Platform for Bidders’ Feedback: Bidders 
were given a platform to voice their ex-
pectations and challenges regarding 
CPBN’s procurement mandate. This feed-
back loop allowed CPBN to understand 
and address the concerns of the bidders 
more effectively.

•		 Role Ambiguity Resolution: Clarification 
of the roles and responsibilities of the Min-
istry of Finance (MoF), CPBN, and OMAs/
PEs in public procurement in Namibia was 
a key focus. This clarity is essential for ef-
fective collaboration and smooth function-
ing of the procurement process.

•		 Enhancing CPBN’s Image and Reputa-
tion: The platform was intended to build 
and enhance the positive image and repu-
tation of CPBN among key and influential 
public service sectors, such as the Execu-
tive Directors of public service institutions. 
A positive perception of CPBN is vital for 
fostering trust and cooperation among 
stakeholders.

During the engagement, participants dis-
cussed various aspects of the procurement 
process, shared their experiences, and ex-
plored opportunities for improving public pro-
curement practices. The forum facilitated open 
dialogue, allowing for the exchange of ideas 
and identification of potential areas for im-
provement.

Overall, the CPBN Stakeholders Engagement 
Forum was a significant step towards strength-
ening partnerships, enhancing mutual under-
standing, and fostering a collaborative envi-
ronment for better public procurement out-
comes in Namibia. 
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3.	 Highlighting Future Opportunities: The 
workshop highlighted upcoming business 
opportunities within CPBN’s procurement 
activities, helping bidders to plan and po-
sition themselves for future projects.

4.	 Enhancing Stakeholder Relations: By 
educating bidders on CPBN’s procure-
ment process and bidding documents, 
the workshop aimed to improve the bid-

ders’ understanding and increase their 
chances of success in competitive bid-
ding. This also fostered stronger relation-
ships between CPBN and the bidding 
community.

The workshop’s success in achieving these 
objectives underscores its importance in pro-
moting a more informed and competitive bid-
ding environment.
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 4.7.4  Engagement with the media 
The media conferences hosted during the 
reporting period were instrumental in 
enhancing transparency and public awareness 
regarding CPBN’s procurement activities. 
These conferences served several key 
purposes:

1.	 Updating Media on Procurement 
Matters: The events provided journalists 
with updates on the progress of 
procurement matters managed by CPBN. 
This ensured that the media was well-
informed about current developments 
and activities related to public 
procurement.

2.	 Creating Engagement Opportunities: 
The conferences offered a platform for 
journalists to engage directly with the 
Administrative Head of CPBN. This 
facilitated the clarification of any questions 
or concerns related to procurement 
processes and outcomes.

3.	 Enhancing Public Awareness: By 
addressing the media, CPBN ensured 
that important information and updates 
reached a broader audience. The media’s 
coverage of the conferences helped in 
disseminating relevant procurement 
information to the public, thereby 
enhancing transparency.

4.	 Addressing Newsworthy Issues: The 
conferences allowed for the discussion of 
procurement issues that were making 
news headlines. This not only provided 
clarifications but also helped manage 
public perception and understanding of 
CPBN’s role and operations.

Overall, these media engagements were 
crucial in fostering transparency, improving 
communication, and building trust between 
CPBN and the public.
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Conclusion
The Central Procurement Board of Namibia 
(CPBN) has made significant strides in improv-
ing procurement processes and outcomes 
over the past financial year. This conclusion 
will highlight the successes, changes, and key 
operational activities, emphasizing our com-
mitment to transparency, efficiency, and so-
cio-economic impact.

Successes and Achievements

1.	 Growth in Active Contracts: The num-
ber of active contracts has surged from 49 
in 2021/2022 to 95 in 2022/2023, reflect-
ing a 94% increase. This growth indicates 
enhanced capacity and a broader reach in 
addressing the procurement needs of var-
ious public entities.

2.	  Effective Contract Management:
•	 Completed Contracts: 4.2% of contracts 

(4 contracts) have been completed and 
are in the defect liability period, showcas-
ing our ability to see projects through to 
fruition.

• 	 On-Track Contracts: 61.1% of contracts 
(58 contracts) are progressing as planned, 
indicating strong project management 
and execution capabilities.

3.	 Addressing Delays and Non- Perfor-
mance:

•	 Delayed Contracts: 10.5% of contracts 
(10 contracts) are behind schedule. We 
have implemented remedial actions to 
bring these projects back on track, 
demonstrating our proactive approach to 
challenges.

• 	 Contract Termination: The Board ap-
proved the termination of one procure-
ment contract due to non-performance, 
underscoring our commitment to ac-
countability and quality.

4.	 Initial Implementation and Reporting:
• 	 Initial Phase Contracts: 18.9% of contracts 

(18 contracts) are in the initial 3-month 
implementation phase, reflecting ongo-

ing project initiation and execution.
•	  Unreported Contracts: We are address-

ing the issue of missing reports for 5.3% 
of contracts (5 contracts) to ensure com-
plete transparency and accountability.

Key Changes and
Improvements
1.	 Enhanced Stakeholder Engagement:
• 	 Bid Evaluation Committee Workshop: 

A workshop was held to improve the un-
derstanding and capacity of Bid Evalua-
tion Committee members, promoting 
best practices in bid evaluation.

•	 Executive Directors’ Engagement: A fo-
rum was conducted to clarify roles and 
foster better relationships between CPBN 
and Public Entities (PEs), aimed at im-
proving service delivery.

2.	 Bidders Education Workshop:
•	 Educating Bidders: A workshop in On-

gwediva focused on educating bidders 
about the competitive bidding process, 
sharing knowledge, and highlighting fu-
ture business opportunities.

3.	 Media Engagement:
• 	 Media Conferences: Two media confer-

ences were hosted to update journalists 
on procurement matters and create a 
platform for engagement and clarifica-
tion.

4.	 Operational Improvements:
• 	 Streamlined Payment Processes: Efforts 

have been made to address the issue of 
delayed payments to contractors and ser-
vice providers, ensuring smoother cash 
flow and project execution.

•	 Compliance and Standards: Engaging 
non-compliant service providers and en-
forcing adherence to labour standards 
and specifications have been key priori-
ties.
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Socio-Economic Impact

1. 	Employment Opportunities: The imple-
mentation of various procurement proj-
ects has created 3,776 employment op-
portunities, contributing to job creation 
and economic development across differ-
ent regions.

2. Community Development:
• 	 Construction of Schools and Vocational 

Training Centres: These projects have 
provided access to education and skills 
training, fostering socio-economic 
growth.

• 	 Feeding Program for Primary Schools: 
The procurement of feeding program 
supplies has improved nutrition, educa-
tion, and community engagement, en-
hancing the well-being of learners and 
their families.

3. 	Local Economic Stimulation:
•	 Sourcing from Local Suppliers: The in-

jection of funds into the local economy 
through salaries and the procurement of 
building materials has stimulated regional 
economic growth.

•	 Engaging Local Communities: Initiatives 
like the Provision of Maize Meal project 
have involved local farmers and food pro-
ducers, fostering community participation 
and economic development.

Challenges and Mitigation Measures

1.	  Delayed Payment of Invoices:
•	 Impact: Delayed payments have affected 

contractors’ cash flow and project time-

lines.
• 	 Mitigation: Streamlining the invoice ap-

proval process and enhancing communi-
cation with contractors to ensure timely 
payments.

2. 	Non-Compliance with Specifications 
and Wages:

•	 Impact: Non-compliance has led to is-
sues in service quality and worker satisfac-
tion.

• 	 Mitigation: Engaging non-compliant 
providers, enforcing adherence to specifi-
cations, and ensuring compliance with la-
bour standards.

3. 	Strained Relationships:
•	 Impact: Delayed payments and non-com-

pliance have strained relationships be-
tween contractors and government enti-
ties.

• 	 Mitigation: Fostering transparency, hold-
ing regular meetings, and maintaining 
clear communication channels to manage 
expectations and build trust.

The CPBN has made significant progress in 
enhancing procurement processes, stake-
holder engagement, and socio-economic im-
pact. The increase in active contracts and suc-
cessful project completions reflect our com-
mitment to efficiency and effectiveness. While 
challenges remain, our proactive measures 
and strategic initiatives demonstrate our ded-
ication to continuous improvement and excel-
lence in public procurement. We look forward 
to building on these successes and further ad-
vancing our mission to serve the Namibian 
citizenry with integrity and professionalism.
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CENTRAL PROCUREMENT BOARD OF NAMIBIA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
BOARD MEMBERS’ RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL

The board members are required in terms of the publice Preocurement Act 15 of 2015 to maintain 
adequate adequate accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the 
annual financial statements and related financial information included in this report. It is their 
responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the 
Board as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the 
period then ended, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards. The external 
auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported 
by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The board members acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal 
financial control established by the Board and place considerable importance on maintaining a 
strong control environment. To enable the board members to meet these responsibilities, the 
board members sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a 
cost-effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a 
clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties 
to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the Board and all 
employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the Board’s business 
is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk 
management by the board members’ is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all 
known forms of risk across the Board. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the board 
members endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems 
and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The board members are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by 
management, that the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial 
records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual financial statements. However, any 
system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance 
against material misstatement or loss.

The board members have reviewed the Board’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2024 
and, in light of this review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the Board has 
or had access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable 
future.

The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the board’s 
annual financial statements. The annual financial statements have been examined by the board’s 
external auditors and their report is presented on pages 100 to 102.

The annual financial statements set out on pages 103 to 145, which have been prepared on the 
going concern basis, were approved by the board members on 13 October 2023 and were 
signed on their behalf by:

Approval of financial statements

Mr. A. Ngavatene Ms. H. Herman Ms. J. !Garus-Oas
Board member                               Board member                             Board member
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To the Board of Central Procurement Board of Namibia

Opinion

We have audited the annual financial statements of Central Procurement Board of Namibia (the 
Board) set out on pages 107 to 108, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 
March 2023, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes 
in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the annual financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and the board members’ 
report.

In our opinion, the annual financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Central Procurement Board of Namibia as at 31 March 2023, and its financial 
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Public Procurement Act 15 of 2015.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Annual Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Board in accordance 
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) and other 
independence requirements applicable to performing audits of annual financial statements in 
Namibia. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The board members are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the document titled “Central Procurement Board of Namibia annual 
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023”, which includes the the supplementary 
information (detailed income statement) as set out on pages 144 to 145. The other information 
does not include the annual financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

I NDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Assurance | Forensic Services | Due Diligence Investigations
PKF FCS Auditors is a member of PKF Global, the network of member firms of PKF International Limited, each of which is a separate 
and independent legal entity and does not accept any responsibility or liability for the actions or inactions of any individual member 
or correspondent firm(s).
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Our opinion on the annual financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the annual financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the annual financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board Members for the Annual Financial Statements

The board members are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the annual 
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the 
requirements of the Public Procurement Act 15 of 2015, and for such internal control as the board 
members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of annual financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the annual financial statements, the board members are responsible for assessing the 
board’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the board members either intends 
to liquidate the Board or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Annual Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these annual financial statements.

Assurance | Forensic Services | Due Diligence Investigations
PKF FCS Auditors is a member of PKF Global, the network of member firms of PKF International Limited, each of which is a separate 
and independent legal entity and does not accept any responsibility or liability for the actions or inactions of any individual member 
or correspondent firm(s).
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As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
• . Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control.

• . Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the board’s internal control.

• . Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the board members.

• . Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board members’ use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the board’s ability to continue as 
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention 
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the annual financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the board to cease to continue as a going concern.

• . Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the annual financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board members regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit.

PKF-FCS Auditors
Registered Accountants and Auditors
Chartered Accountants (Namibia) 
Per: Uwe Wolff
Partner

18 January 2024
Windhoek

Assurance | Forensic Services | Due Diligence Investigations
PKF FCS Auditors is a member of PKF Global, the network of member firms of PKF International Limited, each of which is a separate 
and independent legal entity and does not accept any responsibility or liability for the actions or inactions of any individual member 
or correspondent firm(s).
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T  he board members have pleasure in submitting their report on the annual financial statements of 
Central Procurement Board of Namibia for the year ended 31 March 2023.

1. Incorporation

The board was incorporated and brought into force with effect on 01 April 2017 by Government 
Gazette 46/2017 (GG6255).

The board is domiciled in Namibia where it is incorporated as a state owned enterprise under the 
Public Procurement Act 15 of 2015. The address of the registered office is set out on page 97.

2. Nature of business

Central Procurement Board of Namibia was incorporated in Namibia with interests in the public 
procurement sector. The board operates in Namibia.

The principal objectives of the Central Procurement Board of Namibia are:
• . to conduct the bidding process on behalf of public entities for the award of contracts for 

procurement or disposal of assets that exceed the threshold prescribed for public entities;
• . t o enter into contracts for procurement or disposal of assets on its own behalf or on behalf of 

public entities awarded by the Board;
• . to direct and supervise accounting officers in managing the implementation of procurement 

contracts awarded by the Board. 

There have been no material changes to the nature of the Board’s business from the prior year.

3. Review of financial results and activities

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards and the r equirements of the Public Procurement Act 15 of 2015. The 
accounting policies have been applied consistently compared to the prior year.

Full details of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the Board are set out 
in these annual financial statements.
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4. Board members

The board members in office at the date of this report are as follows:

Board Members Nationality Changes
Ms. H. Herman
(Independent Non-Executive Director) (Chairperson 
of Audit and Risk Committee)

Namibian

Mr. E. P. Shilongo
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Namibian

Ms. J. !Garus-Oas
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Namibian

Ms. E. Nghiidipaa
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Namibian

Mr. O. A. Nangolo
(Independent Non-Executive Director) (Chairperson 
of the Technical Committee)

Namibian

Mr. M. Kambulu
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Namibian

Mr. A. Ngavetene
(Executive Director) (Acting Chairperson and Head 
Administrative)

Namibian

Ms. M. Shiimi
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Namibian Appointed 28 May 2022

Ms. L. Kazetjikuria
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Namibian Appointed 01 April 2023
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5. Board Members’ interests in contracts

During the financial year, no contracts were entered into which board members or officers of the 
Board had an interest and which significantly affected the business of the Board.

6. Property, plant and equipment

Ther e was no change in the nature of the property, plant and equipment of the Board or in the 
policy regarding their use.

At 31 March 2023 the Board’s net investment in property, plant and equipment amounted to  
N$ 6,145,351 (2022: N$ 4,877,992), o f which N$ 2,927,062 (2022: N$ 2,451,600) was added in 
the current year through additions.

7. Events after the reporting period

The board members are not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date 
and up to the date of this report.

8. Going concern

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable 
to a going concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations 
and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and 
commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The board members believe that the board has adequate financial resources to continue in 
operation for the foreseeable future and accordingly the annual financial statements have been 
prepared on a going concern basis. The board has satisfied itself that the organisation is in a 
sound financial position and that it has access to sufficient borrowing facilities to meet its 
foreseeable cash requirements. The board members are not aware of any new material changes 
that may adversely impact the board. The board members are also not aware of any material non-
compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any  pending changes to legislation 
which may affect the board.

9. Litigation statement

The Board becomes involved from time to time in various claims and lawsuits incidental to the 
ordinary course of business. The Board is not currently involved in any such claims or lawsuits, 
which individually or in the aggregate, are expected to have a ma terial adverse effect on the 
business or its assets.
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10. Secretary

The company secretary is Ms. E. Shiponeni (Board Secretary).

11. Statement of disclosure to the company’s auditors

With  respect to each person who is a Board member on the day that this report is approved:
•. there is, so far as the person is aware, no relevant audit information of which the board’s 

auditors are unaware; and
•. the person has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Board member to be 

aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the board’s auditors are aware of 
that information.

12. Terms of appointment of the auditors

PKF-FCS Auditors were appointed as the board’s auditors for the 2023 financial year on 22 July 
2022 in terms of a letter of acceptance of Bid in terms of Public Procurement Act 15 of 2015 
(section 55) and continued its appointment for the 2023 financial year.
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Figures in Namibia Dollar Note(s) 2023 2022

Assets

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 6,145,351 4,877,992

Right-of-use assets 4 4,979,014 8,513,834

11,124,365 13,391,826

Current Assets 

Trade and other receivables 5 40,368 47,330

Cash and cash equivalents 6 31,747,951 34,344,266

31,788,319 34,391,596

Total Assets 42,912,684 47,783,422

 Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Retained income 35,083,112 35,450,823

Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

Lease liabilities 4 5,195,330 8,601,893

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 7 2,634,242 3,730,706

Total Liabilities 7,829,572 12,332,599

Total Equity and Liabilities 42,912,684 47,783,422
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S TATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Figures in Namibia Dollar Note(s) 2023 2022

Revenue 8 1,186,702 527,400

Other operating income 9 40,087,182 32,118,396

Other operating gains / (losses) 10 7,572 (36,528)

Operating expenses (42,569,946) (34,791,868)

Operating loss 11 (1,288,490) (2,182,600)

Investment income 12 1,351,428 1,328,572

Finance costs 13 (430,648) (678,259)

Total comprehensive loss for the year (367,710) (1,532,287)
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 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Figures in Namibia Dollar Retained income Total equity

Balance at 31 March 2021 36,983,110 36,983,110

Total comprehensive Loss for the year (1,532,287) (1,532,287)

Balance at 31 March 2022 35,450,822 35,450,822

Total comprehensive Loss for the year (367,710) (367,710)

Balance at 31 March 2023 35,083,112 35,083,112
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Figures in Namibia Dollar Note(s) 2023 2022

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from customers 41,280,846 32,632,473

Cash paid to suppliers and employees (39,019,300) (33,778,722)

Cash generated from/(used in) operations 15 2,261,546 (1,146,249)

Interest income 12 1,351,428 1,328,572

Finance costs 13 (430,648) (678,259)

Net cash from operating activities 3,182,326 (495,936)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3 (2,927,062) (2,451,600)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3 7,572 -

Movement to right of-use-assets 4 547,412 (9,298,127)

Net cash from investing activities (2,372,078) (11,749,727)

Cash flows from financing activities

Net movement on lease liabilities 4 (3,406,563) 6,750,974

Total cash movement for the year (2,596,315) (5,494,689)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 34,344,266 39,838,955

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6 31,747,951 34,344,266
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C  orporate information

C entral Procurement Board of Namibia is a state owned enterprise incorporated and domiciled in 
Namibia.

1. Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these annual financial statements 
are set out below.

1.1 Basis of preparation
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis in accordance 
with, and in compliance with, International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and Interntional 
Financial Reporting Standards Interpretations Committee (“IFRS IC”) interpretations issued and 
effective at the time of preparing these annual financial statements and the Public Procurement 
Act 15 of 2015.

T he annual financial statements have been prepared on the historic cost convention, unless 
otherwise stated in the accounting policies which follow and incorporate the principal accounting 
policies set out below. They are presented in Namibia Dollars, which is the board’s functional 
currency.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
The preparation of annual financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management, 
from time to time, to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. These estimates and 
associated assumptions are based on experience and various other factors that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates 
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The critical judgements made by management in applying accounting policies, apart from those 
involving estimations, that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the 
financial statements, are outlined as follows:

Lease classification

The Board is party to leasing arrangements, as a lessee. The treatment of leasing transactions in 
the annual financial statements is mainly determined by whether the lease is cosidered to be an 
operating lease or a finance lease. In making this assessment, management considers the 
substance of the lease, as well as the legal form, and makes a judgement about whether 
substantially all fo the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred.

CENTRAL PROCUREMENT BOARD OF NAMIBIA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and 
expected loss rates. The Board uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the 
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Board’s past history, existing market conditions 
as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. For details of the key 
assumptions and inputs used, refer to the individual notes addressing financial assets.

Fair value estimation

Several assets and liabilities of the Board are either measured at fair value or disclosure is made of 
their fair values.

Impairment testing

The Board reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances 
suggest that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. When such indicators exist, management 
determine the recoverable amount by performing value in use and fair value calculations. These 
calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. When it is not possible to determine 
the recoverable amount for an individual asset, management assesses the recoverable amount for 
the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Board assess the appropriateness of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the 
end of each reporting period. The useful lives of motor vehicles, furniture and computer equipment 
are determined based on board replacement policies for the various assets. Individual assets 
within these classes, which have a significant carrying amount are assessed separately to consider 
whether replacement will be necessary outside of normal replacement parameters. The useful life 
of manufacturing eq uipment is assessed annually based on factors including wear and tear, 
technological obsolescence and usage requirements.

When the estimated useful life of an asset differs from previous estimates, the change is applied 
prospectively in the determination of the depreciation charge.

1.3 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets which the Board holds for its own use or for 
rental to others and which are expected to be used for more than one year.

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Board, and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably.

CENTRAL PROCUREMENT BOARD OF NAMIBIA
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Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. Cost includes all of the expenditure 
which is directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of the asset, including the 
capitalisation of borrowing costs on qualifying assets and adjustments in respect of hedge 
accounting, where appropriate.

Expenditure incurred subsequently for major services, additions to or replacements of parts of 
property, plant and equipment are capitalised if it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Board and the cost can be measured reliably. Day 
to day servicing costs are included in profit or loss in the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is available for use as intended by 
management. Depreciation is charged to write off the asset’s carrying amount over its estimated 
useful life to its estimated residual value, using a method that best reflects the pattern in which 
the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the Board. Leased assets are depreciated in a 
consistent manner over the shorter of their expected useful lives and the lease term. Depreciation 
is not charged to an asset if its estimated residual value exceeds or is equal to its carrying amount. 
Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale 
or derecognised.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Depreciation method Average useful life

Furniture and fixtures Straight line 5 years

Motor vehicles Straight line 5 years

Office equipment Straight line 5 years

IT equipment Straight line 3 years

Computer software Straight line 3 years

Network insfrastructure Straight line 8 years

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of 
each reporting year. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted 
for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to 
the total cost of the item is depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each year is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the 
carrying amount of another asset.

Impairment tests are performed on property, plant and equipment when there is an indicator that 
they may be impaired. When the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
assessed to be higher than the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised 
immediately in profit or loss to bring the carrying amount in line with the recoverable amount.

CENTRAL PROCUREMENT BOARD OF NAMIBIA
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A n item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its continued use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from 
the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, determined as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item, is included in 
profit or loss when the item is derecognised.

1.4 Financial instruments
Financial instruments held by the Board are classified in accordance with the provisions of IFRS 9 
Financial Instruments.

Broadly, the classification possibilities, which are adopted by the Board, as applicable, are as 
follows:

Financial assets which are equity instruments:
•. Mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss; or
•. Designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities:
•. Amortised cost; or
•. Mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss.; or
•. Designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Note 17 Financial instruments and risk management presents the financial instruments held by the 
Board based on their specific classifications.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade 
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require 
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The specific accounting policies for the classification, recognition and measurement of each type 
of financial instrument held by the Board are presented below:

Trade and other receivables 

Classification

Trade and other receivables, excluding, when applicable, VAT and prepayments, are classified as 
financial assets subsequently measured at amortised cost (note 5).

They have been classified in this manner because their contractual terms give rise, on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding, 
and the Board’s business model is to collect the contractual cash flows on trade and other 
receivables.
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Recognition and measurement

Trade and other receivables are recognised when the Board becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the receivables. They are measured, at initial recognition, at fair value plus transaction 
costs, if any.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The amortised cost is the amount recognised on the receivable initially, minus principal repayments, 
plus cumulative amortisation (interest) using the effective interest method of any difference 
between the initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance.

Application of the effective interest method

For receivables which contain a significant financing component, interest income is calculated 
using the effective interest method, and is included in profit or loss in investment income (note 
12).

The application of the effective interest method to calculate interest income on trade receivables 
is dependent on the credit risk of the receivable as follows:
•. The effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the receivable, provided 

the receivable is not credit impaired. The gross carrying amount is the amortised cost before 
adjusting for a loss allowance.

•. If a receivable is a purchased or originated as credit-impaired, then a credit-adjusted effective 
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost in the determination of interest. This treatment 
does not change over the life of the receivable, even if it is no longer credit-impaired.

•. If a receivable was not purchased or originally credit-impaired, but it has subsequently become 
credit-impaired, then the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost of the 
receivable in the determination of interest. If, in subsequent periods, the receivable is no 
longer credit impaired, then the interest calculation reverts to applying the effective interest 
rate to the gross carrying amount.

Impairment

The Board recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on trade and other receivables, 
excluding VAT and prepayments. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each 
reporting date.

The Board measures the loss allowance for trade and other receivables at an amount equal to 
lifetime expected credit losses (lifetime ECL), which represents the expected credit losses that will 
result from all possible default events over the expected life of the receivable.
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Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The Board makes use of a provision matrix as a practical expedient to the determination of 
expected credit losses on trade and other receivables. The provision matrix is based on historic 
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic 
conditions and an assessment of both the current and forecast direction of conditions at the 
reporting date, including the time value of money, where appropriate.

The customer base is widespread and does not show significantly different loss patterns for 
different customer segments. The loss allowance is calculated on a collective basis for all trade 
and other receivables in totality. Details of the provision matrix is presented in note 5.

An impairment gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the 
carrying amount of trade and other receivables, through use of a loss allowance account. The 
impairment loss is included in operating expenses in profit or loss as a movement in credit loss 
allowance (note 11).

Write off policy

The Board writes off a receivable when there is information indicating that the counterparty is in 
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty 
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Receivables 
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Board recovery procedures, 
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit 
or loss.

Credit risk

Details of credit risk are included in the trade and other receivables note (note 5) and the financial 
instruments and risk management note (note 17).

Derecognition

Refer to the derecognition section of the accounting policy for the policies and processes related 
to derecognition.

Trade and other payables 

Classification

Trade and other payables (note 7), excluding VAT and amounts received in advance, are classified 
as financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost.
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Recognition and measurement

They are recognised when the Board becomes a party to the contractual provisions, and are 
measured, at initial recognition, at fair value plus transaction costs, if any.
They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability 
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or 
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other 
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a 
shorter period, to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

If trade and other payables contain a significant financing component, and the effective interest 
method results in the recognition of interest expense, then it is included in profit or loss in finance 
costs (note 13).

Trade and other payables expose the Board to liquidity risk and possibly to interest rate risk. Refer 
to note 17 for details of risk exposure and management thereof.

Derecognition

Refer to the “derecognition” section of the accounting policy for the policies and processes 
related to derecognition.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at carrying amount which is deemed to be fair value.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Board derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Board neither transfers nor retains substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Board 
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to 
pay. If the Board retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial 
asset, the Board continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised 
borrowing for the proceeds received.
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Financial liabilities

The Board derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Board obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial 
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets 
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Reclassification

Financial assets

The Board only reclassifies affected financial assets if there is a change in the business model for 
managing financial assets. If a reclassification is necessary, it is applied prospectively from the 
reclassification date. Any previously stated gains, losses or interest are not restated.

The reclassification date is the beginning of the first reporting period following the change in 
business model which nec essitates a reclassification.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are not reclassified.

1.5 Leasehold property
When the Board holds property under a long term prepaid lease agreement, the lease is classified 
as a finance lease or an operating lease in accordance with the provisions of IAS 17 Leases. Refer 
to the accounting policy on leases. When these leases are classified as finance leases, the property 
is capitalised as leasehold property, and is depreciated over the lease term.

1.6 Tax

Tax expenses

Board is exempt from income tax.

1.7 Leases
The Board assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease, at the inception of the contract.

A contract is, or contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified 
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

In order to assess whether a contract is, or contains a lease, management determine whether the 
asset under consideration is “identified”, which means that the asset is either explicitly or implicitly 
specified in the contract and that the supplier does not have a substantial right of substitution 
throughout the period of use. Once management has concluded that the contract deals with an 
identified asset, the right to control the use thereof is considered. To this end, control over the use 
of an identified asset only exists when the Board has the right to substantially all of the economic 
benefits from the use of the asset as well as the right to direct the use of the asset.
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In circumstances where the determination of whether the contract is or contains a lease requires 
significant judgement, the relevant disclosures are provided in the significant judgments and 
sources of estimation uncertainty section of these accounting policies.

Board as lessee

A lease liability and corresponding right-of-use asset are recognised at the lease commencement 
date, for all lease agreements for which the Board is a lessee, except for short-term leases of 12 
months or less, or leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Board recognises the lease 
payments as an operating expense (note 11) on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease 
unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic 
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

The various lease and non-lease components of contracts containing leases are accounted for 
separately, with consideration being allocated to each lease component on the basis of the relative 
stand-alone prices of the lease components and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease 
components (where non-lease components exist).

However as an exception to the preceding paragraph, the Board has elected not to separate the 
non-lease components for leases of land and buildings.

Details of leasing arrangements where the Board is a lessee are presented in note 4 Leases (Board 
as lessee).

Lease liability

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid 
at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot 
be readily determined, the Board uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
•. fixed lease payments, including in-substance fixed payments, less any lease incentives;
•. variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index 

or rate at the commencement date;
•. the amount expected to be payable by the Board under residual value guarantees;
•. the exercise price of purchase options, if the Board is reasonably certain to exercise the option;
•. lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Board is reasonably certain to exercise an 

extension option; and
•. penalties for early termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to 

terminate the lease.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the 
lease liability (or right-of-use asset). The related payments are recognised as an expense in the 
period incurred and are included in operating expenses (note 4).

The lease liability is presented as a separate line item on the Statement of Financial Position.
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The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest 
on the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to 
reflect lease payments made. Interest charged on the lease liability is included in finance costs 
(note 13).

The Board remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related 
right-of-use asset) when:
•. there has been a change to the lease term, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by 

discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate;
•. there has been a change in the assessment of whether the Board will exercise a purchase, 

termination or extension option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting 
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate;

•. there has been a change to the lease payments due to a change in an index or a rate, in which 
case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the 
initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating interest 
rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used);

•. there has been a change in expected payment under a residual value guarantee, in which case 
the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial 
discount rate;

•. a lease contract has been modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a 
separate lease, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised 
payments using a revised discount rate.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the 
carrying amount of the right-of- use asset, or is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount 
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Right-of-use assets

•. Right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line item on the Statement of Financial 
Position. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the 
following:

•. the initial amount of the corresponding lease liability;
•. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date;
•. any initial direct costs incurred;
•. any estimated costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying 

asset or the site on which it is located, when the Board incurs an obligation to do so, unless 
these costs are incurred to produce inventories; and

•. less any lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the 
underlying asset. However, if a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the 
right-of-use asset reflects that the Board expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-
of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. Depreciation starts at the 
commencement date of a lease.
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For right-of-use assets which are depreciated over their useful lives, the useful lives are determined 
consistently with items of the same class of property, plant and equipment. Refer to the accounting 
policy for property, plant and equipment for details of useful lives.

The r esidual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of 
each reporting year. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted 
for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate. Each part of a right-of-use asset with a cost 
that is significant in relation to the total cost of the asset is depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each year is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the 
carrying amount of another asset.

1.8 Impairment of assets
The Board assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an 
asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Board estimates the recoverable amount 
of the asset.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for 
the individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, 
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less 
costs to sell and its value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the 
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a 
revaluation decrease.

An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss 
recognised in prior periods for assets other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have 
decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated.
The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable to a reversal of an 
impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no 
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or 
amortisation other than goodwill is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any reversal of an 
impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation increase.
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1.9 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is 
rendered, such as paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as 
medical care), are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees 
render services that increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when 
the absence occurs.

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there 
is a legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.

1.10 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:
•. the Board has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
•. it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 

settle the obligation; and
•. a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to 
settle the obligation.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed 
by another party, the reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain 
that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall 
be treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement shall not exceed 
the amount of the provision.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract shall be 
recognised and measured as a provision.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised.

1.11 Government grants
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that:
•. the Board will comply with the conditions attaching to them; and
•. the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the 
related costs that they are intended to compensate.
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A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already 
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future 
related costs is recognised as income of the period in which it becomes receivable.

Government grants related to assets, including non-monetary grants at fair value, are presented 
in the statement of financial position by setting up the grant as deferred income or by deducting 
the grant in arriving at the carrying amount of the asset.

Grants  related to income are presented as a credit in the profit or loss (separately).

Repayment of a grant related to an asset is recorded by increasing the carrying amount of the 
asset or reducing the deferred income balance by the amount repayable. The cumulative additional 
depreciation that would have been recognised to date as an expense in the absence of the grant 
is recognised immediately as an expense.

1.12 Revenue from contracts with customers
The Board recognises revenue from the following major sources:
•. Sales of tender documents

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and 
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Board recognises revenue when it 
transfers control of a product or service to a customer.

Sales of tender documents

For sales of tender documents, revenue is recognised when control of the goods or service has 
transferred to the customer. 

Revenue is recognised at a point in time for sales of tender documents.
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2. New Standards and Interpretations

2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year

In the current year, the Board has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are 
effective for the current financial year and that are relevant to its operations:

Standard/ Interpretation:
Effective date:
Years beginning on 
or after

Expected impact:

• Annual Improvement to IFRS Standards 
2018-2020: Amendments to IFRS 1 01 January 2022 The impact of the 

amendments is not material. 

• Reference to the Conceptual 
Framework: Amendments to IFRS 3 01 January 2022 The impact of the 

amendments is not material. 

• Annual Improvement to IFRS Standards 
2018-2020: Amendments to IFRS 9 01 January 2022 The impact of the 

amendments is not material. 

• Property, Plant and Equipment: 
Proceeds before Intended Use: 
Amendments to IAS 16

01 January 2022 The impact of the 
amendments is not material. 

• Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a 
Contract: Amendments to IAS 37 01 January 2022 The impact of the 

amendments is not material. 

• Annual Improvement to IFRS Standards 
2018-2020: Amendments to IAS 41 01 January 2022 The impact of the 

amendments is not material. 
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2.2 Standards and interpretations not yet effective

The Board has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have 
been published and are mandatory for the Board’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 
April 2023 or later periods:

Standard/ Interpretation:
Effective date:
Years beginning on 
or after

Expected impact:

• Lease liability in a sale and leaseback 01 January 2023 Unlikely there will be a
material impact

• Initial application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 
- Comparative information 01 January 2023 Unlikely there will be a

material impact

• Deferred tax related to assets and 
liabilities arising from a single 
transaction - Amendments to IAS 12

01 January 2023 Unlikely there will be a
material impact

• Disclosure of accounting policies: 
Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice 
Statement 2.

01 January 2023 Unlikely there will be a
material impact

• Definition of accounting estimates: 
Amendments to IAS 8 01 January 2023 Unlikely there will be a

material impact

• Classification of Liabilities as Current or 
Non-Current - Amendment to IAS 1 01 January 2023 Unlikely there will be a

material impact

• IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 01 January 2023 Unlikely there will be a
material impact
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Figures in Namibia Dollar Note(s) 2023 2022

3. Property, plant and equipment

2023 2022
Cost or 
revaluation

Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying 
value

Cost or 
revaluation

Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying 
value

Furniture and fixtures 2,123,394 (484,695) 1,638,699 1,716,204 (87,650) 1,628,554
Motor vehicles 1,357,528 (579,212) 778,316 1,357,528 (362,007) 995,521
Office equipment 847,441 (303,889) 543,552 454,186 (155,300) 298,886
IT equipment 2,057,750 (934,221) 1,123,529 2,169,623 (702,377) 1,467,246
Computer software 497,215 (110,348) 386,867 47,224 (34,538) 12,686
Leasehold 
improvements

736,502 (251,345) 485,157 504,793 (29,694) 475,099

Network infrastructure 1,544,731 (355,500) 1,189,231 - - -
Total 9,164,561 (3,019,210) 6,145,351 6,249,558 (1,371,566) 4,877,992

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2023

Opening 
balance

Additions Transfers Depreciation Total

Furniture and fixtures 1,628,554 407,190 - (397,045) 1,638,699
Motor vehicles 995,521 - - (217,205) 778,316
Office equipment 298,886 393,255 - (148,589) 543,552
IT equipment 1,467,246 1,444,918 (1,366,981) (421,654) 1,123,529
Computer software 12,686 449,990 - (75,809) 386,867
Leasehold 
improvements

475,099 231,709 - (221,651) 485,157

Network infrastructure - - 1,366,981 (177,750) 1,189,231
4,877,992 2,927,062 - (1,659,703) 6,145,351

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2022

Opening
balance

Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

Furniture and fixtures 3,255 1,709,595 - (84,296) 1,628,554
Motor vehicles 1,212,725 - - (217,204) 995,521
Office equipment 217,817 150,937 (3,268) (66,600) 298,886
IT equipment 1,691,943 86,275 (33,260) (277,712) 1,467,246
Computer software 28,427 - - (15,741) 12,686
Leasehold 
improvements

- 504,793 - (29,694) 475,099

3,154,167 2,451,600 (36,528) (691,247) 4,877,992
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Figures in Namibia Dollar Note(s) 2023 2022

Other information

The property, plant and equipment represents actual acquisitions. Assets received from the 
Ministry of Finance are not accounted for in the accounting records for the year ended  
31 March 2023.

4. Leases (board as lessee)

Details pertaining to leasing arrangements, where the board is lessee are presented below:

Cost or 
revaluation

Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying 
value

Cost or 
revaluation

Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying 
value

Buildings 4,979,014 - 4,979,014 8,513,834 - 8,513,834

Net carrying amounts of right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets are included in the following line items:

Buildings 4,979,014 8,513,834

Additions to right-of-use assets

Buildings 547,412 9,045,948

Depreciation recognised on right-of-use assets

Depreciation recognised on each class of right-of-use assets, is presented below. It includes 
depreciation which has been expensed in the total depreciation charge in profit or loss (note 11), 
as well as depreciation which has been capitalised to the cost of other assets.

Buildings 2,987,408   2,389,387

Other disclosures

Interest expense on lease liabilities 430,648 678,259

Leases of low value assets included in operating expenses - 83,116

At 31 March 2023, the board is committed to N$3,021,857 (2022: N$ 2,853,032) for short-term 
leases. This differs from the portfolio of leases for which an expense was recognised in the current 
financial period, because of a 12 month lease agreement for 10 photocopier machines which was 
entered into in the last month of the financial period.
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Figures in Namibia Dollar Note(s) 2023 2022

Lease liabilities

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is as follows:

Within one year 3,021,857 2,853,032

Two to five years 2,173,473 5,748,861

5,195,330 8,601,893

 Non-current liabilities 5,195,330 8,601,893

Exposure to liquidity risk

Refer to note 17 Financial instruments and risk management for the details of liquidity risk 
exposure and management.

5. Trade and other receivables

Non-financial instruments:
Prepayments 40,368 47,330

Total trade and other receivables 40,368 47,330

Split between non-current and current portions

Current assets 40,368 47,330

Financial instrument and non-financial instrument components of trade and 
other receivables

Non-financial instruments 40,368 47,330

Exposure to credit risk

Trade receivables inherently expose the Board to credit risk, being the risk that the Board will incur 
financial loss if customers fail to make payments as they fall due. As at year end, there are no trade 
debtors outstanding, therefore no credit risk exposure.

There have been no significant changes in the credit risk management policies and processes 
since the prior reporting period.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during 
the current reporting period.
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Figures in Namibia Dollar Note(s) 2023 2022

Fair value of trade and other receivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables approximates their carrying amounts.

6. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Bank balances 31,747,951 34,344,266

Credit quality of cash at bank and short-term deposits, excluding cash on hand

The credit quality of cash at bank and short-term deposits, excluding cash on hand that are neither 
past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or 
historical information about counterparty default rates:

Credit rating

AA (Na) / A1+ 31,747,951 34,344,266

Exposure to currency risk

T he Board is not exposed to currency risk related to certain bank accounts as no accounts are 
denominated in a foreign currency.

Namibia Dollar amount

Namibia Dollar 31,747,951 34,344,266
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Figures in Namibia Dollar 2023 2022

7. Trade and other payables

Financial instruments:
Trade payables 818,608 1,222,052

Provision for leave pay 1,118,156 947,619

Provision for retirement gratuity 137,184 -

Accrued expenses: Staff PAYE 560,294 1,561,035

2,634,242 3,730,706

Financial instrument and non-financial instrument components of trade and 
other payables

At amortised cost 2,634,242 3,730,706

Fair value of trade and other payables

The fair value of trade and other payables approximates their carrying amounts.

8. Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers

Sale of tender documents 1,186,702 527,400

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

The Board disaggregates revenue from customers as follows:

Sale of tender documents

Sale of tender documents 1,186,702 527,400

Timing of revenue recognition At a point in time

Sale of tender documents 1,186,702 527,400
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Figures in Namibia Dollar Note(s) 2023 2022

9. Other operating income

O ther income - Sundry income 64,368 118,396

VET relief 22,814 -

Government grant 40,000,000 32,000,000

40,087,182 32,118,396

10. Other operating gains / (losses) 
Gains / (losses) on disposals

Property, plant and equipment 3 7,572 (36,528)

11. Operating profit (loss)

Operating loss for the year is stated after charging (crediting) the following, amongst others:

Auditor’s remuneration - external

Audit fees 468,285 599,909

Remuneration, other than to employees

Annual report costs 135,183 144,530

Consulting and professional services 647,364 226,154

782,547 370,684

Employee costs

Salaries, wages, bonuses and other benefits 30,222,593 26,458,208

Termination benefits 137,184 511,770

Total employee costs 30,359,777 26,969,978
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Figures in Namibia Dollar Note(s) 2023 2022

Leases

Operating lease - 83,116

Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment 1,659,703 691,247

Right-of-use assets 2,987,408 2,389,387

Total depreciation and amortisation 4,647,111 3,080,634

Expenses by nature

The total cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses, marketing expenses, general and 
administrative expenses, research and development expenses, maintenance expenses and other 
operating expenses are analysed by nature as follows:

 Employee costs 30,359,777 26,969,978

Lease expenses - 83,116

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 4,647,111 3,080,634

Other expenses 7,563,058 4,658,140

42,569,946 34,791,868

12. Investment income

Interest income
Investments in financial assets:

Bank and other cash 1,351,428 1,328,572

13.  Finance costs

 Lease liability 430,648 184,965

Lease liability - prior year adjustment - 493,294

Total finance costs 430,648 678,259
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Figures in Namibia Dollar Note(s) 2023 2022

14.  Taxation

No provision has been made for 2023 tax as the board is exempt from taxation.

15.  Cash generated from/(used in) operations

Loss before taxation (367,710) (1,532,287)

Adjustments for non-cash items:

Depreciation, amortisation, impairments and reversals of 
impairments

4,647,111 3,080,634

(Gains) losses on sale of assets and liabilities (7,572) 36,528

Adjust for items which are presented separately:

 Interest income (1,351,428) (1,328,572)

Finance costs 430,648 678,259

Changes in working capital:

(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables 6,962 (13,323)

Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables (1,096,465) (2,067,488)

2,261,546 (1,146,249)
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Figures in Namibia Dollar Note(s) 2023 2022

16.  Board Members’ emoluments

Board members

2023

Board Members’ emoluments Emoluments Total

Ms. H. Herman
(Independent Non-Executive Director) (Chairperson of Audit and Risk 
Committee)

550,329 550,329

Mr. E.P. Shilongo
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

583,912 583,912

Ms. J. !Garus-Oas
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

559,064 559,064

Ms. E. Nghiidipaa
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

552,879 552,879

Mr. O. Nangolo
(Independent Non-Executive Director) (Chairperson of the Technical Committee)

288,270 288,270

Mr. M. Kambulu
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

615,200 615,200

Ms. M. Shiimi
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

492,774 492,774

Ms L. Namoloh
(Co-opted Member)

43,298 43,298

3,685,726 3,685,726
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2022

Board Members’ emoluments Emoluments Total

Ms. H. Herman
(Independent Non-Executive Director) (Chairperson of Audit and Risk Committee)

487,442 487,442

Mr. E.P. Shilongo
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

465,987 465,987

Ms. J. !Garus-Oas
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

498,179 498,179

Ms. E. Nghiidipaa
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

492,625 492,625

Mr. M. Kambulu
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

535,054 535,054

Mr. A. Ngavetene
(Independent Non-Executive Director) (Chairperson of Human Resource 
Committee)

485,047 485,047

Ms. A.L. Namoloh
(Advisor: Human Resource Committee)

38,066 38,066

3,002,400 3,002,400

Executive management

2023

Board Members’ emoluments Directors’
fees

Annual 
motor
vehicle

allowance

Total

Services as director or prescribed officer
Mr. A. Ngavetene
(Independent Non-Executive Director) (Chairperson of Human 
Resource Committee)

1,500,000 107,400 1,607,400

1,500,000 107,400 1,607,400
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Executive management

2022

Board Members’ emoluments Basic salary 2021 
motor
vehicle

allowance

Total

Services as director or prescribed officer
Mr. P.P. Swartz
(Executive Director) (Chairperson of the Board and 
Administrative Head of Central Procurement Board of 
Namibia)

1,500,000 214,800 1,714,800

Ms. L. Ramakhutla
(Executive Director) (Deputy Chairperson of the Board and 
Deputy Administrative Head of Central Procurement Board of 
Namibia)

1,300,000 183,763 1,483,763

2,800,000 398,563 3,198,563
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17.  Financial instruments and risk management

Categories of financial instruments

Categories of financial assets

2023

Note(s) Amortised 
cost

Leases Total Fair value

Trade and other receivables 5 - 40,368 40,368 40,368

Cash and cash equivalents 6 31,747,951 - 31,747,951 31,747,951

31,747,951 40,368 31,788,319 31,788,319

2022

Note(s) Amortised 
cost

Leases Total Fair value

Trade and other receivables 5 - 47,330 47,330 47,330

Cash and cash equivalents 6 34,344,266 - 34,344,266 34,344,266

34,344,266 47,330 34,391,596 34,391,596

Categories of financial liabilities

2023

Note(s) Amortised 
cost

Leases Total Fair value

Trade and other payables 7 - 2,634,245 2,634,245 2,634,245

Finance lease obligations 4 - 5,195,330 5,195,330 5,195,330

2,634,245 5,195,330 7,829,575 7,829,575

2022

Note(s) Amortised 
cost

Leases Total Fair value

Trade and other payables 7 3,730,706 - 3,730,706 3,730,706

Finance lease obligations 4 - 8,601,893 8,601,893 8,601,893

3,730,706 8,601,893 12,332,599 12,332,599
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Pre tax gains and losses on financial instruments

Gains and losses on financial assets 

2023

Note(s) Amortised 
cost

Total

Recognised in profit or loss:
Interest income 12 1,351,428 1,351,428

2022

Note(s) Amortised 
cost

Total

Recognised in profit or loss:
Interest income 12 1,328,572 1,328,572

Gains and losses on financial liabilities

2023

Note(s) Leases Total

Recognised in profit or loss:

Finance costs 13 (430,648) (430,648)

2022

Note(s) Leases Total

Recognised in profit or loss:

Finance costs 13 (678,259) (678,259)

Capital risk management

Lease liabilities 5,195,330 8,601,893

Trade and other payables 7 2,634,245 3,730,706

Total borrowings 7,829,575 12,332,599
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Cash and cash equivalents (31,747,951) (34,344,266)

Net borrowings (23,918,376) (22,011,667)

Equity 35,083,110 35,450,822

Gearing ratio (68)% (62)%

Financial risk management

Overview

The Board is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
•. Credit risk;
•. Liquidity risk; and
•. Market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk).

The board members have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Board’s 
risk management framework. The board has established the risk committee, which is responsible 
for developing and monitoring the Board’s risk management policies. The committee reports 
quarterly to the Board on its activities.

The Board’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by 
the Board, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. 
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market 
conditions and the Board’s activities.

The Board Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the risk 
management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management 
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Board. The audit committee is assisted in its 
oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk 
management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee 
and the risk committee.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Board if a customer or counterparty to a financial 
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations.
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The Board is exposed to credit risk on trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. 
None of these exist at the moment and the reated credit risk is assessed as very low. 

Credit risk for exposures other than those arising on cash and cash equivalents, are managed by 
making use of credit approvals, limits and monitoring. The Board only deals with reputable 
counterparties with consistent payment histories. Sufficient collateral or guarantees are also 
obtained when necessary. Each counterparty is analysed individually for creditworthiness before 
terms and conditions are offered. The analysis involves making use of information submitted by 
the counterparties as well as external bureau data (where available). Counterparty credit limits are 
in place and are reviewed and approved by credit management committees. The exposure to 
credit risk and the creditworthiness of counterparties is continuously monitored.

Credit risk exposure arising on cash and cash equivalents is managed by the board through 
dealing with well-established financial institutions with high credit ratings.

Credit loss allowances for expected credit losses are recognised for all debt instruments, but 
excluding those measured at fair value through profit or loss. Credit loss allowances are also 
recognised for loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below:

2023 2024

Note(s) Gross
carrying
amount

Credit 
loss

allowance

Amortised
cost / fair

value

Gross
carrying
amount

Credit 
loss

allowance

Amortised
cost / fair

value

Trade 
and other 
receivables

5 40,368 - 40,368 47,330 - 47,330

Cash and cash 
equivalents

6 31,747,951 - 31,747,951 34,344,266 - 34,344,266

31,788,319 - 31,788,319 34,391,596 - 34,391,596

Liquidity risk

The Board is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the Board will encounter difficulties in 
meeting its obligations as they become due.

The Board manages its liquidity risk by effectively managing its working capital, capital expenditure 
and cash flows. The financing requirements are met through cash generated from operations and 
government grant received. The monetary value of government grant received to support effective 
and efficient operating activities of the Board is dependent on the annual budget allocation 
approved. The board members are aware of the liquidity risk associated to the reliance by the 
Board on the government grants as income.

There have been no significant changes in the liquidity risk management policies and processes 
since the prior reporting period. The current liquidity risk is assessed as very low.

CENTRAL PROCUREMENT BOARD OF NAMIBIA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



REPORT 2022/2023 141

Figures in Namibia Dollar Note(s) 2023 2022

Foreign currency risk

The Board is not exposed to foreign currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Fluctuations in interest rates impact on the value of investments and financing activities, giving 
rise to interest rate risk.

The Board policy with regards to financial assets, is to invest cash at floating rates of interest and 
to maintain cash reserves in short-term investments in order to maintain liquidity, while also 
achieving a satisfactory return for board.

There have been no significant changes in the interest rate risk management policies and processes 
since the prior reporting period.

Interest rate profile

The interest rate profile of interest bearing financial instruments at the end of the reporting period 
was as follows:

Note Average effective
interest rate

Carrying amount

2023 2022 2023 2022

Variable rate instruments:
Assets

Trade and other receivables 5 - % - % 17,554 47,330

Cash and cash equivalents 6 5.75 % 3.75 % 31,747,951 34,344,266

31,765,505 34,391,596

Liabilities

Trade and other payables 7 - % - % (5,195,330) (3,730,709)

Net variable rate financial 
instruments 26,570,175 30,660,887
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The following sensitivity analysis has been prepared using a sensitivity rate which is used when 
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s 
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates. All other variables remain constant. 
The sensitivity analysis includes only financial instruments exposed to interest rate risk which were 
recognised at the reporting date. No changes were made to the methods and assumptions used 
in the preparation of the sensitivity analysis compared to the previous reporting period.

2023 2023 2022 2022

Increase or decrease in rate Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Impact on profit or loss:
 Cash and cash equivalents 1% (2022: 1 %) 317,480 (317,480) 343,443 (343,443)

Price risk

The Board is not exposed to any price risk.

18. Going concern

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable 
to a going concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations 
and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and 
commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The board members believe that the Board has adequate financial resources to continue in 
operation for the foreseeable future and accordingly the annual financial statements have been 
prepared on a going concern basis. The board members are satisfied are that the Board is in a 
sound financial position and that it has continued access to government grant funding to meet its 
foreseeable cash requirements in terms of the Public Procurement Act 15 of 2015. The board 
members are not aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact the Board. The 
board members are also not aware of any material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory 
requirements or of any pending changes to legislation which may affect the Board.

The board members have reviewed the budgets and cash flow forecast for the next 12 months, as 
well as the current liquidity and solvency position of the Board and believe that the Board has 
adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future. The annual 
financial statements have accordingly been prepared on the going concern basis.
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19.  Events after the reporting period

The Board is not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date up to the 
date of this report which may have an impact on the financial statements.
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Revenue

Sale of tender documents 1,186,702 527,400

Other operating income

Other income - Sundry income 64,368 118,396

Other income - NTA 22,814 -

Government grant 40,000,000 32,000,000

9 40,087,182 32,118,396

Other operating gains/(losses)

Gains / (losses) on disposal of assets or settlement of 
liabilities

7,572 (36,528)

Expenses (Refer to page 145) (42,569,946) (34,791,868)

Operating loss 11 (1,288,490) (2,182,600)

Investment income 12 1,351,428 1,328,572

Finance costs 13 (430,648) (678,259)

Total comprehensive loss for the year (367,710) (1,532,287)

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the annual financial statements and is unaudited.
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Other operating expenses
Accounting fees (3,450) -

Advertising (625,907) (276,857)

Annual report costs (135,183) (144,530)

Auditor’s remuneration - external audit 11 (468,285) (599,909)

Bank charges (33,015) (19,043)

Bid Evaluation Committee fees (572,117) (460,650)

Cleaning (74,323) (39,467)

Computer expenses (74,578) -

Conference and meeting fees (186,866) (55,495)
Consulting and professional fees - human resources and marketing (643,914) (21,224)
Consulting and professional fees - legal fees - (204,930)
Consumables (101,455) (73,046)

Corporate events - (25,655)

Depreciation (4,647,111) (3,080,634)
Employee costs (30,359,777) (26,969,978)
Fines and penalties (29,441) -
Insurance (146,026) 12,612

Lease rentals on operating lease - (83,116)
Motor vehicle expenses (95,176) (29,471)

Municipal expenses (374,160) (271,477)

Office refreshments (7,324) (11,674)

Office relocation - (43,350)
Postage (440) (440)
Printing and stationery (614,519) (376,131)
Repairs and maintenance (117,520) (28,952)
Security (71,265) (22,678)
Small assets not capitalised (640,277) (369,612)
Software annual subscription and IT expesnes (656,776) (349,791)
Staff recruitment costs (5,580) -
Staff welfare (125,550) -
Stakeholder engagement costs (370,071) (55,641)
Subscriptions (46,625) (76,340)
Telephone and fax (378,716) (326,881)
Training (699,027) (720,058)
Travel - local (58,871) -
Year-end function (206,601) (67,450)

(42,569,946) (34,791,868)

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the annual financial statements and is unaudited.
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